
Copeland Borough Council
The Market Hall
Market Place
Whitehaven
CA28 7JG

COUNCIL
AGENDA

Venue: This meeting will be a virtual meeting and therefore 
will not take place in a physical location 

Date: Tuesday, 22nd September, 2020
Time: 2.00 pm
Contact Officer: Clive Willoughby              Tel: 01946 598328

1. Attendances and Apologies for Absence 

2. Minutes of the Annual General meeting held on 21 May 2020 and 
the Extra-Ordinary meetings held on 21 May 2020, 14 July 2020 and 
8 September 2020 

1 - 22

3. Declarations of Interest in Agenda Items 

4. Chair's Announcements 

5. Petitions 

6. Questions from Members of the Public 

To receive questions from members of the public.  Maximum 
time allowed 30 minutes.  Questions must be submitted to the 
Council’s Monitoring Officer at least three working days prior to 
the meeting.

7. Questions by Members 

a) Written questions to the Mayor or any other Member of 
the Council in relation to content of any recommendations 
or reports before the Council.  Questions must be 
submitted in writing to the Council’s Monitoring Officer at 
least three working days prior to the meeting. (45 minutes 
allowed) – Procedure Rule 11.2.

b) Oral questions to the Mayor on any matter where the 
Council has powers or duties or which affects the 
Borough.  (60 minutes allowed plus any unused time from 
(a) above) – Procedure Rule 11.1.

Public Document Pack



8. Mayor's Executive Report 23 - 48

9. Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 49 - 60

10. Outside Bodies Annual Report 61 - 138

11. Outside Bodies Amendments 139- 150

12. Update on Copeland Borough Council's Town Centres 
Programme - The Government's Future High Streets Fund 
Opportunity for Whitehaven and Towns Fund Opportunities for 
Cleator Moor and Millom 

151 - 156

13. Business and Planning Act 2020: Chief Executive's Urgent Decision 157 - 162

14. Date and Time of the Next Meeting 

The next meeting of Council will be held on Tuesday 15th 
December 2020 at 2:00pm. This will be a virtual meeting.

Membership: Councillor Charles Maudling (Chair), Mayor Mike Starkie, 
Councillors: David Banks, Jackie Bowman, Hugh Branney, Graham Calvin, 
James Date, Gemma Dinsdale, Gwynneth Everett, Allan Forster, 
Jeanette Forster, Fred Gleaves, Jeffrey Hailes, Mike Hawkins, Tom Higgins, 
Linda Jones-Bulman, Joan Hully, John Kane, Ged McGrath, Michael McVeigh, 
Sam Meteer, Graham Minshaw, David Moore, Steven Morgan, Brian O'Kane, 
Sam Pollen, Andy Pratt, Russell Studholme, Peter Tyson, Carl Walmsley, 
Eileen Weir, Doug Wilson and Felicity Wilson (Deputy Chair).

Contacts: Direct Dial: 01946 598328
E-mail: clive.willoughby@copeland.gov.uk
Website: www.copeland.gov.uk



COUNCIL

MINUTES OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING HELD ON THURSDAY, 21 MAY 2020

Present: Councillor Joan Hully (Chair), Mayor Mike Starkie, Councillors  
David Banks, Jackie Bowman, Graham Calvin, James Date, Gemma Dinsdale, 
Gwynneth Everett, Allan Forster, Jeanette Forster, Fred Gleaves, Jeffrey Hailes, 
Mike Hawkins, Linda Jones-Bulman, John Kane, Charles Maudling, Ged McGrath, 
Michael McVeigh, Sam Meteer, Graham Minshaw, David Moore, 
Steven Morgan, Brian O'Kane, Sam Pollen, Andy Pratt, Russell Studholme, 
Carl Walmsley, Eileen Weir, Doug Wilson and Felicity Wilson.

Officers: Pat Graham (Chief Executive), Sarah Pemberton (Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial Strategy (Monitoring Officer)), Clive Willoughby 
(Democratic Services Officer), Clinton Boyce (Solicitor), Steven Brown (Director 
of Financial Resources), Stephanie Shaw (Electoral and Democratic Services 
Manager) and Andrew Clarke (Communications and Engagement Manager) and 
Clive Willoughby (Democratic Services Officer).

C 20/1 Election of Chair of Council for 2020/2021 

Prior to seeking nominations for Chair for the municipal year 2020-2021, the 
Chair stated that she had been a Copeland Borough Councillor for 25 years and 
was proud of Copeland, its Officers and the public, especially in the current 
pandemic emergency.

It was then moved by Councillor Steven Morgan that Councillor Charles 
Maudling be elected Chair of Council for the municipal year 2020-2021. This was 
duly seconded by Councillor David Moore and following a 30 second pause to 
allow for any Member to indicate otherwise, it was

RESOLVED – unanimously that Councillor Charles Maudling be elected Chair of 
Council for the 2020-2021 municipal year.  Councillor Charles Maudling then 
took the Chair.

C 20/2 Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Hugh Branney and Peter 
Tyson.

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



C 20/3 Appointment of Deputy Chair for 2020/2021 

It was moved by Councillor James Date that Councillor Felicity Wilson be elected 
Deputy Chair of Council for the municipal year 2020-2021. This was duly 
seconded by Councillor Andy Pratt and following a 30 second pause to allow for 
any Member to indicate otherwise, it was

RESOLVED – unanimously that Councillor Felicity Wilson be appointed Deputy 
Chair of Council for the 2020-2021 municipal year.

C 20/4 Minutes of the Special and Extra-Ordinary meetings held on 10 February 2020 
and the Extra-Ordinary meeting held on 5 May 2020 

Consideration was given to the Minutes of the Special and Extra-Ordinary 
meetings held on 10 February 2020 and the Extra-Ordinary meeting held on 5 
May 2020.

Following a 30 second pause to allow for any Member to indicate otherwise, it 
was

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meetings held on 10 February 2020 and 5 
May 2020 be signed by the Chair as a correct record. 

C 20/5 Declarations of Interest in Agenda Items 

There were no Declarations of Interest given at this meeting.

C 20/6 To note Appointment of Members to the Executive and responsibilities 

Prior to consideration of this item the Mayor thanked the outgoing Chair Joan 
Hully for her hard work during her term of office and congratulated Councillors 
Charles Maudling and Felicity Wilson on their appointments.  

The Mayor then highlighted the Council’s achievements during 2019/20 and 
thanked all Members and the staff for their continued support.
During the current Covid-19 pandemic crisis, particular thanks go to all members 
of the Copeland Staff, Management team, and those in the emergency services 
and other key roles.

The Mayor was pleased to announce that the Council had extricated itself from 
a very costly PFI agreement and thanked Pat Graham, Chief Executive; Steven 
Brown, Director of Finance and Andrew Smith, advisor for their work in bringing 
this about.

Page 2



The Mayor notified Council of his Executive appointments and their portfolio 
responsibilities for the 2020-2021 municipal year as follows:-

Mike Starkie (Mayor)              Portfolio holder for Strategic Leadership
David Moore (Deputy Mayor)   Portfolio holder for Nuclear and Corporate 
Services
Michael McVeigh                  Portfolio holder for Environment and Place
Gwynneth Everett       Portfolio holder for Inclusive Communities
Steven Morgan                               Portfolio holder for Commercial Development

A short adjournment took place due to technical issues. 

When the meeting resumed, and following a 30 second pause to allow for any 
Member to indicate otherwise, it was

RESOLVED – That the Executive appointments and portfolios be noted.

C 20/7 Appointments to Committees and Outside Bodies for 2020/2021 

Consideration was given to a proposal to appoint Councillors to Committees and 
Outside Bodies, to approve the co-option of an Independent Member to the 
Audit Committee and the appointment of statutory independent persons for 
code of conduct matters.

A vote was then taken by way of a roll call. 
On a vote of 29 For, 0 Against and 1 Abstention, it was therefore:-

RESOLVED – that 
a) The appointments to committees as shown at Appendix A of the report be 

noted.
b) The appointment of Mr Michael Bonner as Independent Member to the 

Audit Committee until the Annual Meeting in 2021, be confirmed.
c) The appointments of Mr Anthony Payne and  Mr Henry Holmes as 

statutory independent persons for code of conduct matters until the 
Annual Meeting in 2021, be confirmed.

d) The re-appointment of three members, Mr Richard Askew, Mr Phillip 
Robinson and Rev Keith Teasdale, to the Independent Remuneration 
Panel until the Annual Meeting in 2021 be noted and endorsed.

e) The schedule of Outside Body appointments as detailed at Appendix B of 
the report be agreed.

Page 3



C 20/8 Calendar of Virtual Meetings for 2020/2021 

Consideration was given to the proposed calendar of virtual meetings for the 
2020-2021 municipal year.

Following a 30 second pause to allow for any Member to indicate otherwise, it 
was:

RESOLVED – that the calendar of meetings for the 2020-2021 municipal year be 
approved.

The Meeting closed at 2.53 pm 

Chair

Page 4



COUNCIL

MINUTES OF EXTRA-ORDINARY MEETING HELD ON THURSDAY, 21 MAY 2020

Present: Charles Maudling (Chair), Mayor Mile Starkie, Councillors  David Banks, 
Jackie Bowman, Graham Calvin, James Date, Gemma Dinsdale, 
Gwynneth Everett, Allan Forster, Jeanette Forster, Fred Gleaves, Jeffrey Hailes, 
Mike Hawkins, Joan Hully, Linda Jones-Bulman, John Kane, Ged McGrath, 
Michael McVeigh, Sam Meteer, Graham Minshaw, David Moore, 
Steven Morgan, Brian O'Kane, Sam Pollen, Andy Pratt, Russell Studholme, 
Carl Walmsley, Eileen Weir, Doug Wilson and Felicity Wilson.

Officers: Pat Graham (Chief Executive), Sarah Pemberton (Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial Strategy (Monitoring Officer)), Steven Brown (Director 
of Financial Resources), Clinton Boyce (Solicitor), Stephanie Shaw (Electoral and 
Democratic Services Manager), Clive Willoughby (Democratic Services Officer) 
and Andrew Clarke (Communications and Engagement Manager)

C 20/9 Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Hugh Branney and 
Peter Tyson

C 20/10 Declarations of Interest in Agenda Items 

Councillors Joan Hully declared a non-pecuniary interest in Agenda Item 9 
(Mayor’s Executive Report) due to being a Cleator Moor Town Councillor and a  
member of Regeneration North East Copeland. 

Councillors Linda Jones-Bulman declared a non-pecuniary interest in Agenda 
Item 9 (Mayor’s Executive Report) due to being a Cleator Moor Town Councillor. 

C 20/11 Chair's Announcements 

The Chair thanked his fellow Councillors for electing him to the position of Chair. 
He was honoured and proud to be a member of Copeland Borough Council, 
particularly at this time with Covid-19.

He continued that the people of Copeland are special, with a great community 
spirit, and thanked the emergency services.

Page 5



Special mention was made to all the Copeland staff for their work during this 
crisis, and thanked the Democratic Services team for their patience in getting all 
Members to the current position and able to meet virtually.

C 20/12 Petitions 

It was noted that no petitions had been received from members of the public.

C 20/13 Questions from Members of the Public 

It was noted that no questions had been received from members of the public.

C 20/14 Questions by Members 

a) Written Questions 

Question from Councillor Mike Hawkins regarding Agenda item 8 on Page 7. 

As stated the total grants from government to help the council deal with the 
Covid-19 outbreak are expected to total £715,512, it is stated that it's unclear if 
this will be sufficient to meet the financial pressures. I appreciate that this is an 
ongoing crisis but can the Mayor give the council an indication of how much the 
crisis has cost the council so far. In terms of lost revenue from car parks as an 
example. Also has any work been undertaken on any final cost? 

In response the Mayor stated that on Friday we submitted our second COVID 
finance return to Government along with all other local authorities. In this 
return we estimated that to the end of May 2020 the Crisis would have cost us 
£994k; this is made up of additional costs in response to the crisis and lost 
revenue, for example we estimate we have lost £68k from our car parks income, 
a further £60k from our trade waste collections and £126k in Council Tax and 
Business Rates income. In our return Government also asked us to calculate the 
potential cost for the year if the current restrictions were in place until the end 
of July, we estimated the full year impact at approximately £2m. 

Question from Councillor Jackie Bowman.

Whilst the Audit meeting of April 16th (which being a quarterly meeting should 
have been February) was cancelled due to Covid19 surely we should still have 
had accounts papers?

In response the Mayor stated that papers were not prepared for the cancelled 
meeting but will be prepared for the rearranged meeting in June.  Our Corporate 

Page 6



reporting officer was redeployed very early on in the response phase to Covid19 
as a Welfare Coordinator; it was agreed by Corporate Leadership Team that this 
important community work took priority over preparing papers for a meeting 
that had already been cancelled

b) Oral Questions 

It was noted that there were no oral questions from Members.

C 20/15 Dispensation for Non-Attendance at Meetings 

Consideration was given to a report recommending Council to grant a 
dispensation for non-attendance at meetings to those Members unable to 
attend meetings between the 28th February 2020 and 21st May 2020, such 
dispensation being restricted to that period. 

The motion was moved by Councillor David Moore and duly seconded by 
Councillor Michael McVeigh. Following a 30 second pause to allow for any 
Member to indicate otherwise, it was

RESOLVED – That, for the purpose of section 85(1) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the reasons as set out in the agenda report for Members’ absence from 
meetings between 28th February 2020 and 21st May 2020 be approved.

C 20/16 Covid-19 Financial Report 

Council received an report updating them on two Officer Decisions relating to 
financial matters as a result of Covid-19 that were taken as it was not practical 
to wait to the next Council meeting. These relate to the receipt and distribution 
of grants relating to business rates and council tax.

Members were also updated on further central government emergency funding 
grants totalling £715,512.

Following a 30 second pause to allow for any Member to indicate otherwise, it 
was

RESOLVED – That the Covid-19 Financial Report be noted.

Page 7



C 20/17 Mayor's Executive Report 

In asking the Mayor and his Executive to introduce the Executive Report, 
Members were advised that questions would be taken at the end of the 
portfolio report.  

Following updates from the Mayor and Portfolio Holders, Questions were then 
invited from Members.

Question from Councillor John Kane regarding Agenda item 9 on Page 23. 

Given that Cumbria has 4 districts in top ten Covid19 highest rates per head of 
population including Copeland and given that one of the two major Cumbrian 
hospitals is in Whitehaven why is the nearest Covid19 testing facility in Penrith? 
And what are we as a council doing to rectify this government’s oversight.
I think there are genuine concerns as the lockdown restrictions are eased.

In response the Mayor stated that the siting of the Penrith test facility was 
through the SCG on behalf of the LRF and it was a multi-agency agreement.  
Prior to the final agreed site at Penrith rugby club there were several other sites 
which were explored for suitability in line with the specific criteria which had 
been laid down, unfortunately other sites did not meet the required criteria.  
Initially the sites were for clinical and key workers and one of the main criteria 
was a 90 mile return journey radius in order to facilitate as many tests as 
possible.  There are also other mobile test units within the county which are 
being run by the military, and, Copeland has the benefit of a local test facility in 
Whitehaven for clinical staff. This local and convenient site has been used many 
times already by our own HR dept. to book tests for our staff members.

I hope to offer some further reassurance that the testing operation that has 
been in place at Lillyhall for some weeks now will shortly, as part of a Cumbria 
Local Resilience Forum response arrangements, move into a new location within 
Copeland, reducing further the travel distance

Question from Councillor John Kane regarding Agenda item 9 on Page 27. 

Money, we were made custodians for the Harbour commissioner’s government 
grant. This was for improvements (bike facility, overnight accommodation, 
water sports etc) but the money runs from April 2020 to April 2021 and had to 
be spent in that timeframe.
Obviously the project hasn’t started so is it/ will, it go ahead.

Page 8



In response the Mayor stated that the Commissioners are still waiting on central 
government to approve the 2020/21 element of the funding which is crucial to 
the project proceeding. Subject to that funding being confirmed and subject to 
the Commissioners giving the go ahead it is likely that the contract for the 
construction of the new slip way, being the first phase of the development will 
be let shortly, with work starting at the beginning of July. For the main build it is 
likely that tenders for that work will be invited shortly. Overall, due to Covid-19 
the project is about 8 weeks behind schedule but still on the Commissioner's 
target.

Question from Councillor John Kane regarding Agenda item 9 on Page 43. 

Regarding the ever changing scene with the crematorium, funerals, churches 
and cemeteries. We need to be immediately informed of any changes. Where 
are we now and what arrangements are being put in place with the lockdown 
easing?

In response the Portfolio Holder for Commercial Services, Councillor Steven 
Morgan stated that we continue to follow the Government’s guidance ‘for 
managing a funeral during the coronavirus pandemic’ as published on 19 April 
(and updated on 18 May 2020).  This guidance has been developed to ensure 
that:

 bereaved people are treated with sensitivity , dignity and respect

 mourners and workers involved in the management of funerals are 
protected from infection

Through our regular Bereavement Services Bulletin, Copeland Matters and 
Members Updates, we continue to provide members, residents and our key 
stakeholders (including funeral directors, clergy and celebrants) with updates 
and key messages from the Government’s guidance.  Currently this means that 
for funerals services at the crematorium and cemeteries only the following 
should attend, alongside the Funeral Director and funeral staff:

 members of the person’s household

 close family members, or close friends

 attendance of a celebrant of choice

We have a range of operational measures in place with our stakeholders 
including funeral directors and remain in regular communication with them at 
this time; we are grateful for their continued support with managing funerals at 
the crematorium and in our cemeteries.  

Page 9

https://mailchi.mp/afb025fd7685/copeland-chat-january-5926261?e=0d3de83f14


The Council does not manage churches, however, there is currently no new 
update on the opening of churches for funeral services.  

The original Government Guidance was published on 19 April 2020; an update 
to this guidance was issued on 18 May 2020 with the following two key updates: 

Any mourner who is showing coronavirus (COVID-19) symptoms (a new 
continuous cough, a high temperature, or a loss of, or change in, their normal 
sense of taste or smell) should not attend the funeral as they pose a risk to 
others; remote participation should be considered.

Mourners should also follow the advice on social distancing when travelling to 
and from the funeral. If mourners are using shared transport with others that 
they do not normally meet and where social distancing is not possible, they 
should consider wearing a face covering.

This information is shared with our funeral directors who will support families 
with this guidance.

We will continue to communicate changes in guidance to Members through the 
Bereavement Services Bulletin and Member Updates. 

Question from Councillor Jackie Bowman.

Have any of our staff been furloughed also have any of our staff developed 
Covid19 and if so are we doing anything to support them?

In response the Portfolio Holder for Nuclear and Corporate Services, Councillor 
David Moore stated that we have furloughed 45 staff members, in agreement 
with individuals, Executive decision, CLT and Trade Union support.  The 
minimum furlough time is 3 weeks; business requirements are being managed 
and reviewed on a weekly basis.

We have had 23 employees who have displayed Covid 19 symptoms.  With the 
local test facility, HR have arranged for 5 staff members to be tested, and, I am 
pleased to say that all tests came back negative. The turnaround of results 
testing is within 24 hrs, which aids greatly in relieving anxiety for our staff and 
their families.

In the initial few weeks of lockdown, HR were supporting employees with 
symptoms by calling them and assuring that themselves and their families were 
ok and offering any services we have in place to support them, i.e. counselling, 
the employee assistance program and information regarding the community 

Page 10



hub. Managers have also been encouraged to keep in contact with employees 
and offer support where needed.

We have also arranged appointments with occupational health for employees 
who are struggling following their illness, this provides us with more guidance 
on how best to support them. 

We will continue to arrange testing appointments for any staff member who 
contacts HR and thinks that they may be displaying symptoms of Covid 19.

Question from Councillor Eileen Weir regarding Agenda Item 9, Page 27-28.

Would there have been an indemnity clause against pestilence in the Council’s 
Future High Street bid to PROTECT the Council from any additional loss’s 
incurred In the event that our bid is SUCCESSFUL But is stalled by the 
Government for an Indefinite length of time?”

In response the Mayor stated that normally a grant will be awarded with a 
spend by date being included. That end date is usually realistic and by the time 
Future High Street Fund grants are awarded the Government should have a 
clear handle on any future delays which might arise from pestilence, in 
particular Covid-19, and so set a realistic completion date. In this case funding 
will be paid annually in advance and must be spent (not just committed) by 31 
March 2024.  However, this does not mean that all work must be delivered by 
this date.  Co-funding can be utilised for projects with a delivery schedule that 
extends beyond 31 March 2024. It is not usual to have an indemnity clause in a 
grant approval to enable further amounts to be claimed if pestilence occurs. It is 
for the grant funder and grant receiver to work together to ensure that projects 
are managed within the set timescales.

So if we are successful, the implication is that the funding will be in place each 
year in advance - as has occurred with our Coastal Communities projects, which 
are also rung through MHCLG.

Question from Councillor Joan Hully.

Has the issue of new Laptops has been a costly loading for the council?

The Mayor replied that cost of laptops based on actual invoices from March to 
now is £79,626 (ex VAT) which was for the purchase of 109 new laptops for staff 
and councillors.

Page 11



Question from Councillor Michael McVeigh regarding Agenda Item 9 on Page 32

Cumbria Clean Energy Development Company. Who are the Members? How 
often do they meet? Where would we access Agenda , Business Etc,?

In response the Portfolio Holder for Nuclear and Corporate Services, Councillor 
David Moore stated that the short answer is that there is no development 
company yet. The Cumbria LEP has set up an informal Clean Energy 
Development Team under the Clean Energy Panel chaired by Rebecca Weston 
from Sellafield.  The team is made up of members of the Clean Energy Panel, 
including me, and is being led by former Director of the Centre of Nuclear 
Excellence, Ken McEwan.

As this is a working group, there are no formally published agendas per se, but a 
report on the team is included at page 180 of the latest Cumbria LEP board 
papers, which can be accessed on the LEP website.

Over the coming year, the team will develop a proposal for a longer term 
solution, which might be a development company if appropriate.

Question from Councillor Linda Jones-Bulman.

As Older Persons Champion (when the role starts), What is Copeland doing or 
can do to ensure social inclusion works for all in Copeland?  
The Government is investing in cycling and walking schemes, routes etc, 
Copeland developing cycling hubs, my question is how can we enable and 
encourage those in our deprived areas to be included, those who do not qualify 
for a ‘cycle to work scheme’, and would benefit from an electric bike, Repair-
vouchers, in order to be a part of the future green, healthier living plans?

In response the Mayor stated that we will continue to work with voluntary and 
third sectors, as we have a great track record of doing so, to support all those in 
deprived areas as best we possibly can.  With regard to cycling specifically, the 
Govt. recently announced an initiative around walking and cycling and a huge 
investment of £2bn infrastructure to encourage and facilitate this.  With regard 
to equipment, it is too early to give specific detail, but we will look out for 
further detail and announcements from the Govt., and in the meantime 
continue to respond positively and appropriately to individual needs as a Council 
as they are raised.

Page 12



Question from Councillor Sam Pollen regarding Agenda Item 9 on Pages 25 & 26.

We all welcome the latest news of the Future High Streets and Town Deal 
Funding that could potentially transform Whitehaven, Cleator Moor and 
Milliom.
Could the Mayor please update Council on investment opportunities for 
Egremont and the Borderlands scheme.

In response the Mayor stated the we have been liaising with Cumbria County 
Council on Borderlands and jointly agreed that Egremont was to be the area 
proposed for inclusion in the Borderlands Place Programme.
This is still subject to government approval for the Borderlands Place 
Programme as identified in the Heads of Terms from July 2019.
The next step would then be for the Outline Business Case, for the whole 
Borderlands wide programme, to be considered and if approved by government, 
those areas selected will then have to work in partnership to put forward a Place 
Plan.
Due to Coronavirus the timescales for this are uncertain but further information 
will be shared as and when it becomes available

Question from Councillor Jackie Bowman.

Firstly I would like to commend the Waste Management Teams for their 
sensitivity when on rounds and a funeral cortege is coming through.
Have any Teams come across problems with any extra vehicles parked, or with 
members of the public?

The Director of Corporate Services and Commercial Strategy responded by 
providing an update, stating that there have been some issues with staffing 
levels and that the number of crew in a cab had been reduced from three to 
two.
There had also been some issues with extra recycling being put out and with 
parked cars on some streets, but the crews were liaising with residents to 
resolve these.

Councillor Sam Pollen regarding Agenda 9 on Page 35 regarding Homelessness.

Thanked the Homelessness team and all staff for the work they are doing during 
the current Covid-19 crisis.

Page 13



In response the Portfolio Holder for Environment and Place, Councillor Michael 
McVeigh agreed with the remarks regarding the Homelessness team and stated
that a spokesperson from MHCLG said;
“Councils were given £3.2m at the start of the Covid- 19 Pandemic so that 
immediate action could be taken to help get rough sleepers off the streets.
Dame Louise Casey who is responsible for the Governments Covid -19 rough 
sleeping response taskforce will spearhead the next phase of Government 
support for rough sleepers during the pandemic.
Whilst council’s continue to provide accommodation to those that need it, it is 
only responsible that we work with partners to ensure rough sleepers can move 
into long term safe accommodation once the immediate crisis is over.”

Following a 30 second pause to allow for any Member to indicate otherwise, it 
was

RESOLVED: That the Mayor’s Executive report be noted.  

C 20/18 Date and Time of the Next Meeting 

It was noted that the next virtual meeting of Council would be held at 2:00pm 
on Tuesday 30th June 2020.

The Meeting closed at 4.22 pm 

Chair

Page 14



COUNCIL

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON TUESDAY, 14 JULY 2020

Present: Councillor Charles Maudling (Chair), Mayor Mike Starkie, 
Councillors  David Banks, Jackie Bowman, Hugh Branney, James Date, 
Gwynneth Everett, Allan Forster, Jeanette Forster, Fred Gleaves, Jeffrey Hailes, 
Tom Higgins, Linda Jones-Bulman, Joan Hully, John Kane, Ged McGrath, 
Michael McVeigh, Sam Meteer, David Moore, Steven Morgan, Brian O'Kane, 
Sam Pollen, Andy Pratt, Russell Studholme, Peter Tyson, Carl Walmsley, 
Eileen Weir, Doug Wilson and Felicity Wilson.

Officers: Pat Graham (Chief Executive), Sarah Pemberton (Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial Strategy (Monitoring Officer)), Steven Brown (Director 
of Financial Resources), Clinton Boyce (Solicitor), Stephanie Shaw (Electoral and 
Democratic Services Manager), Clive Willoughby (Democratic Services Officer), 
Rose Blaney (Electoral and Democratic Services Officer), Steve Smith (Interim 
Nuclear Projects Manager) and Barbara Vernon (Property and Estates Manager).

C 20/19 Attendances and Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Graham Calvin, 
Mike Hawkins and Graham Minshaw.

C 20/20 Declarations of Interest in Agenda Items 

Councillors Sam Meteer declared a non-pecuniary interest in Agenda Item 3 due 
to having a relative working at the location to be considered. 

Councillors Joan Hully declared a non-pecuniary interest in Agenda Item 3 due to 
being Chair of Cleator Moor Town Council. 

Councillors Gwynneth Everett declared a non-pecuniary interest in Agenda Item 
3 due to being a former Sellafield employee. 

Councillors Linda Jones-Bulman declared a non-pecuniary interest in Agenda 
Item 3 due to being a Cleator Moor Town Councillor. 

Page 15



C 20/21 Exempt Information 

It was moved by the Chair and duly seconded that under Section 100A(4) of the 
Local Government Act 1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting 
for the following item on the grounds that, if they were present, there could be 
disclosed to them exempt information as defined in the relevant paragraphs of 
Schedule 12A of the Act.

Following a 30 second pause to allow for any Member to indicate otherwise, it 
was

RESOLVED – That the press and public be excluded for the following item of 
business in view of likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 3 of part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended).

C 20/22 Industrial Solutions Hub 

Councillor David Moore introduced a report informing Council of a new initiative 
designed to increase the growth and diversity of the Copeland economy. 
Members were asked to support the continued development and 
implementation of the programme.

The report was seconded by Councillor Andy Pratt.

Members considered the report and a discussion followed. 

A vote was then taken, by way of a roll call. 

On a vote of 29 For, 0 Against and 0 Abstentions, it was therefore:-

RESOLVED – that all recommendations shown in Item 3 of the Agenda report  be 
approved without amendment.

C 20/23 Date and Time of the Next Meeting 

It was noted that the next virtual meeting of Council would be held at 2:00pm 
on Tuesday 8th September 2020.

The Meeting closed at 5.30 pm 

Chair

Page 16



Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



COUNCIL

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON TUESDAY, 8 SEPTEMBER 2020

Present: Councillor Charles Maudling (Chair), Mayor Mike Starkie, 
Councillors  David Banks, Jackie Bowman, Hugh Branney, Graham Calvin, 
James Date, Gemma Dinsdale, Gwynneth Everett, Allan Forster, 
Jeanette Forster, Fred Gleaves, Jeffrey Hailes, Mike Hawkins, Tom Higgins, 
Linda Jones-Bulman, Joan Hully, John Kane, Ged McGrath, Michael McVeigh, 
Sam Meteer, Graham Minshaw, David Moore, Steven Morgan, Brian O'Kane, 
Sam Pollen, Andy Pratt, Russell Studholme, Peter Tyson, Eileen Weir, 
Doug Wilson and Felicity Wilson.

Officers: Pat Graham (Chief Executive), Sarah Pemberton (Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial Strategy (Monitoring Officer)), Steven Brown (Director 
of Financial Resources), Clinton Boyce (Solicitor), Mike Graham (Political 
Advisor), Chris Hoban (Strategic Planning Manager), Stephanie Shaw (Electoral 
and Democratic Services Manager), Clive Willoughby (Democratic Services 
Officer), and Rose Blaney(Electoral and Democratic Services Officer).

C 20/24 Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Carl Walmsley.

C 20/25 Declarations of Interest in Agenda Items 

Clinton Boyce (Solicitor) declared an interest Agenda Item 3 (Copeland Local 
Plan Preferred Options) as it relates to the proposed extension of the village 
settlement boundary for Moor Row.

C 20/26 Copeland Local Plan Preferred Options 

Councillor Andy Pratt introduced a report on the Copeland Local Plan Preferred 
Options.

It was stated that the Council’s Strategic Planning team had produced the 
Preferred Options Draft of the new Copeland Local Plan 2017-2015 which, once 
adopted, would replace the Copeland Local Plan 2013-2028. 
It was further stated that a public consultation was required on the Preferred 
Options Draft, to seek views on the preferred policy approach and draft site 
allocations for development and protection. 
The report was seconded by Councillor Doug Wilson.

Page 19



Members considered the report and a vote was then taken, by way of a roll call. 

On a vote of 28 For, 0 Against and 1 Abstention, it was therefore:-

RESOLVED – that an eight week public consultation on the Preferred Options 
Document beginning on 21st September 2020 be agreed.

C 20/27 Copeland Local Development Scheme 2020 

Councillor Andy Pratt introduced a report on the Copeland Local Development 
Scheme 2020 which informed Members of a number of minor updates to the 
adopted Local Development Scheme 2019.
This also included updated timescales and additional scope both of which were 
outlined in the agenda report.

The report was seconded by Councillor Felicity Wilson.

Members considered the report and a vote was then taken, by way of a roll call. 

On a vote of 28 For, 0 Against and 1 Abstention, it was therefore:-

RESOLVED – that the Local Development Scheme 2020 be adopted as the 
Council’s work programme for producing the new Copeland Local Plan 
2017-2035.

C 20/28 Statement of Community Involvement 2020 

Councillor Andy Pratt introduced a report informing Members of the 
amendments made to the Revised Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) 
2016.
It was highlighted that these amendments had been made to take account of 
the restrictions due to the Covid-19 pandemic, the updated Development 
Management processes, that planning applications were now available on-line 
and an update to the Council’s Neighbourhood Planning Protocol.

The report was seconded by Councillor Doug Wilson.

Members considered the report and a discussion followed. 

Councillors were keen to ensure that all members of the community had access 
to the documents and were advised that they would be available on-line and in 
hard copy in many different formats and languages if required.

Page 20



A vote was then taken, by way of a roll call. 

On a vote of 31 For, 0 Against and 0 Abstentions, it was therefore:-

RESOLVED – that 
a) the changes to the Statement of Community Involvement, including  

           the temporary limitations in public/face to face engagement due to   
           the Covid-19 restrictions be approved, and

b) the updated Neighbourhood Planning Protocol 2020 be adopted.

The Meeting closed at 2.55 pm 

Chair

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Full Council 220920

1

Executive Report to Full Council – 22nd September 2020

Strategic Leadership - Mayor Mike Starkie

Communications 

The Communications team has supported the Elected Mayor in the launch of our new 
campaign, Shop Local: Keep it in Copeland, to promote the borough’s retail and business 
sector.  Campaign stickers have been produced for the borough’s shop windows and their 
website/social media pages, and an online retail directory created.

We have also formed a partnership with Newsquest – publishers of The Whitehaven News, 
News & Star and The Mail – to secure in print and online coverage for our businesses.
Coverage so far has included bars, cafes and restaurants (linked with the Eat Out to Help 
Out scheme) in addition to hair, health and beauty salons and it will continue weekly for the 
next five months.

Communications around Covid-19 continue daily, with the team forming part of the 
countywide media group to generate and share consistent messages around testing, 
restrictions, schools re-start and economic recovery. Working with our Tourism Officer, the 
team is supporting the #PerfectPlaceToBe campaign to highlight the borough’s attractions 
and beauty spots.

Attracting significant positive media coverage over recent weeks has been the reopening of 
the Beacon Museum, and the record-breaking recycling volumes collected by our crews. The 
team also carried out a survey on the Whitehaven Market which attracted over 600 
responses and will feed into the decision-making on its future operations.

Other media coverage has included:

 The launch of a coastal challenge event as part of the Connecting Cumbria’s 
Hidden Coast programme

 Bigrigg couple Linda and David Park winning our Best Kept Garden competition
 Unemployed residents securing work in the care sector after completing a 

Copeland Work and Skills Partnership course

Page 23

Agenda Item 8



Full Council 220920

2

Revenues

Council Tax Collection Rate

31.8.19 31.8.20 +/-
Council Tax 47.43% 46.42% -1.01%

The Council Tax collection rate is currently down on the same time last year by 1.01%. The 
impact of COVID19 naturally causing most of this reduction. In addition, in line with all other 
district councils in Cumbria, the council has paused all statutory recovery cycles for quarters 
one and two. Recovery cycles are due to commence again in September 20. 

4,000 Soft recovery letters were issued in May 20 and a further 1,500 letters were issued in 
July 20. 

The COVID Council Tax Hardship Fund reduction of £300 for working age local council tax 
support recipients was processed on 20th August 2020. 1,228 working age claimants 
received a discount on their council tax, and bills have been issued accordingly. 

Business Rates Collection Rate

31.8.19 31.8.20 +/-
Business Rates 83.59% 85.39% +1.80%

The Business Rates collection rate is up on the same time last year. 100% business rates 
relief to the retail, leisure and hospitality sectors is assisting here, along with a number of 
business rates payers choosing to pay their yearly charge in March/April 20. 

With effect from 8th September 2020, the first business rates grant scheme has paid out 
£15.4 million to 1,356 Copeland businesses. This is over 90% of the available fund provided 
by government. Most of the businesses remaining are likely to be restricted from applying 
due to State aid. 

A second discretionary grant scheme was launched between 1st and 15th June 2020. The 
council received 167 applications for this scheme and has paid out 100% of the available 
fund, which was £853,250. The intention of the discretionary scheme was for councils to 
offer support to businesses that were unable to access any other COVID19 cash grant 
schemes. 

Page 24



Full Council 220920

3

Benefits - Housing Benefit & Council Tax Support/Council Tax Reduction

Processing times for New Claims and Changes in Circumstances for Housing Benefits and 
Council Tax Support for the Quarter have fluctuated during this quarter due to increased 
workload, team resources and leave.  

The legislative changes to the Local Housing Allowance (LHA) rates have now been applied 
to the systems and claimants notified, together with the Hardship Fund awards of up to 
£300.

Face to face appointments will be commencing from 14th September, however, we do not 
anticipate having many, as customers appear to have adapted well to the changes of 
interaction during Covid.

Housing Benefit Overpayments

All active recovery is still on hold for the moment.  The current outstanding balance is 
£822954.99 as at 4th September 2020.

Discretionary Housing Payments

Applications for Discretionary Housing Payments continue to be made. These applications 
continue to be received via the following routes:

 Applications made following claimant completion of the form on the Council’s 
website. 

 Telephone applications.
 Postal applications.
 Applications completed by Citizens Advice or Home Group Financial Inclusion 

Partners.

Currently 140 successful DHP awards have been made with a further 53 unsuccessful 
awards.

Following the impact of welfare reforms a total of 85% of successful awards have been 
granted based on the removal of spare room subsidy with the remain 15% split over impact 
due to benefit cap, LHA restriction or combination of reforms/additional impact.

Current DHP spend for 2020/2021 stands as follows: 

Date 2020/2021 DHP 
total allocation

Spend % of Allocation 
Spend

Remaining 
Fund

08.09.2020 £207,191 £103,081.56 49.75% £104,109.44

Based on all applications received to date, a total of 11 applications made were as a direct 
result to claimants’ financial circumstances due to COVID-19. 

Page 25



Full Council 220920

4

Economic Development

Cumbria LEP

We continue to attend Cumbria LEP strategy and sector groups to help guide and support 
our local programmes, particularly the Visitor Economy Sector Group as we deal collectively 
with the impacts of Covid and recovery strategy.  

The LEP’s Business Economic Response and Recovery Group (BERRG) that was set up 
specifically to deal with the Covid-19 situation across the County, is now moving towards 
being a longer-term group and reshaped as the Business and Economy Advisory Group.  The 
LEP are currently drafting a plan for Cumbria’s Economic Recovery – Restart, Reboot, 
Rethink and intend to have a document in place by the end of October.  

We are also contributing to the challenges faced by People, Employment & Skills Strategy 
Group. This includes the need for a Local Skills Responsiveness Programme (LSRP) to reflect 
the recent announcement by the Chancellor on skills within the Summer Economic 
Statement.  The LSRP will address the complexity of the skills offer, and reflect how 
programmes, initiatives and incentives relate to each other.

Town Centre Regeneration:

Future High Streets Funding (FHSF)

We submitted our Full Business Case for FHSF to the Ministry of Housing, Communities and 
Local Government (MHCLG) on 5th June 2020.  The programme for Whitehaven is intended 
to transform the core of the town centre with a focus on King Street and its links with the 
harbour. The projects are grouped under two key themes “Connecting Whitehaven” which 
will reshape Whitehaven and improve the experience of visiting the town; and “Diversifying 
Whitehaven”, which renews the high street with new uses to drive growth and ensure 
future sustainability.  The Business Case reflects the opportunities to address the impacts of 
Covid on Whitehaven and particularly King Street.

The total scheme will cost just over £24.5M, with the application to government at £15.8M 
from FHSF against a further application to Sellafield Ltd’s Social Impact Fund to match 
MHCLG’s contribution.  Cumbria LEP has supported the team with the development of our 
Business Case and has confirmed match funding of £1,056,649 of Local Growth Fund.  The 
Whitehaven FHSF scheme will be delivered by 2024 should our Business Case be successful.

Town Deal Funding

Following initial progress setting up the Town Deal Boards earlier in the year, Ministry of 
Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) published the Towns Fund guidance 
in June.  The guidance highlighted the purpose of the Towns Fund to drive the sustainable 

Page 26



Full Council 220920

5

economic regeneration of towns to deliver long term economic and productivity growth 
through urban regeneration, skills and enterprise infrastructure, and connectivity.

Towns must develop a well-evidenced Town Investment Plan (TIP), which sets out a clear 
understanding of the area, focusing on its assets, opportunities and challenges.  The amount 
of investment from the Towns Fund will be based on the strength of the Plan and how it 
aligns with the Towns Fund objectives.  The Government will consider proposals to invest up 
to £25 million in each town.  Both Cleator Moor and Millom Town Deal Boards intend to 
submit by 31 January 2021.

Technical support is in place to support the Boards and Council with the TIP development, 
including economic analysis; urban design, project costings and graphic design production of 
the TIPs, as well as stakeholder engagement.

On 1st July 2020, MHCLG wrote to the Council offering both Cleator Moor and Millom grants 
of £500,000 to fund capital projects that can be delivered this financial year and support 
both towns in responding to the immediate challenges, including improvements to parks 
and green spaces and sustainable transport links; repurposing empty commercial properties 
or site remediation.  Both towns have identified projects that will address some of the 
immediate challenges that are deliverable by March 2021.

Nuclear and Corporate Services – Deputy Mayor Councillor David Moore

Nuclear

Sellafield

General Update: 

There have been a number of developments at Sellafield since the last report:

 Sellafield Ltd recently published a revised Social Impact Strategy – referred to as Six 
(Social Impact multiplied).

 There are now around 4,000 workers working on the Sellafield site in adherence to 
social distancing rules. Office-based employees continue to blend their hours between 
offices and home working.

 Magnox Reprocessing has restarted with an intention to complete the reprocessing 
mission as planned, with a revised completion date during 2021.

 The Box Encapsulation Plant Product Store Direct Import Facility (BEPPS-DIF) successfully 
received an inactive transport package – highlighting the important work the facility will 
do when operational and receiving waste from legacy areas of the site.

Page 27



Full Council 220920

6

 In August, Sellafield announced the award of a £30m contract to TSP Engineering in 
Workington for the manufacture of waste containers to support decommissioning and 
retrievals operations on the site. The contract is expected to sustain or create 200 jobs.

 A chemical disposal occurred on site on August 14th when staff on routine inspections 
identified small amounts of organic peroxide at the Magnox Reprocessing Plant. The 
Explosive Ordinance Disposal Team attended the site and safely disposed of the 
substance.

 Work on the Buzz Station in Whitehaven continues, with progress shared in a recent 
video and podcast.

Sellafield Planning Update:

Since the last Full Council there has been the following developments at Sellafield:

 NSGP (New Steam Generation Plant):  This major application, comprising an amended 
design for the proposed facility at Fellside, was eventually approved in July 2020.  The 
outstanding issue relating to noise and the potential for it to adversely affect neighbours 
has now been satisfactorily addressed by the imposition of appropriately worded 
conditions. 

 Transport & Movement Plan:  This is still awaited.  Sellafield Ltd have decided to take 
the opportunity presented by the `Sellafield pause` to review their approach.  Sellafield 
Executive agreed revised principles in July 2020 and new travel targets are now being 
developed for approval in mid-September 2020.  A revised Travel Plan is being written.  
Further updates including amended timescales are now awaited.

 SL`s PPA (Planning Performance Agreement):  A 12 month extension has now been 
agreed and signed by SL and ourselves with a view to developing a new PPA by March 
2021.  Cumbria County Council have entered into a separate 12-month extension with 
SL.

 Potential New Applications:  Confidential pre-application discussions are currently 
progressing with a view to SL submitting planning applications shortly for the following 
major developments on site; a new CNC Operational Unit; Replacement Analytical 
Laboratories; the demolition of Calder Hall Turbine Hall A.

Nuclear Decommissioning Authority (NDA) Update

Strategy 4

In August, the NDA published a draft of Strategy 4 for a 12-week public consultation. The 
NDA is mandated by the Energy Act of 2004 to review and update their strategy every 5 
years to outline how they intend to implement relevant UK policy to deliver the NDA 
mission.

Page 28



Full Council 220920

7

Officers are reviewing the Strategy and will hold a workshop with Members of the Strategic 
Nuclear & Energy Board (SNEB) later this month to compile the response, which will take 
into consideration the Council’s agreed Nuclear Position Statements.

Members can find the draft Strategy 4 consultation document here: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/nuclear-decommissioning-authority-nda-
draft-strategy-for-consultation 

NDA Sustainability Report

Via a NuLeAF (Nuclear Legacy Advisory Forum) workshop, officers received a presentation of 
a draft NDA Sustainability Report. The report will form part of the NDA’s reporting 
commitment in the future, and sets out how delivery of the NDA mission creates wider 
value for the environment and communities around the UK’s nuclear sites.

Cumbria Nuclear Prospectus

On 13th August, the Cumbria Nuclear Prospectus was endorsed by the Board of the Cumbria 
Local Enterprise Partnership. This follows endorsement by the Cumbria LEP Clean Energy 
Sector Panel and the Mayor’s Future Opportunities Group.

The Prospectus sets out a nuclear sector-specific, place-based vision for Cumbria’s role in 
decarbonising the UK’s energy systems. With buy-in and support from countywide 
stakeholders, the document is being used to engage and attract prospective clean energy 
developers including new and advanced nuclear, hydrogen and offshore wind.

Council officers are working with the Cumbria LEP Clean Energy Sector Panel to develop 
these opportunities in advance of expected announcements in the autumn.

New Nuclear Update

Moorside Clean Energy Hub

On 30th June, EDF Energy announced the formation of the Moorside Clean Energy Hub 
consortium, which brings together some of the UKs leading industry and supply chain 
organisations, and trade unions. The consortium proposes the development of a clean 
energy hub at Moorside.

UK SMR

Following receipt of £18m of Industrial Strategy Challenge Funding, matched by industry 
partners, the UK SMR consortium continues to develop an advanced light water reactor 
design for the UK. Council officers continue to engage with the consortium through the 
Cumbria LEP Clean Energy Sector Panel.

Page 29

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/nuclear-decommissioning-authority-nda-draft-strategy-for-consultation
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/nuclear-decommissioning-authority-nda-draft-strategy-for-consultation


Full Council 220920

8

Advanced Modular Reactors

The Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) has announced the 
successful technology vendors who will progress to Phase 2 of the Advanced Modular 
Reactor competition, receiving £multi-million funding to develop clean energy technologies 
towards commercial deployment in the UK. The Phase 2 technologies are:

 U-Battery: a 10MW high temperate gas-cooled micro-reactor suitable for remote 
and off grid applications as an embedded power source, including high temperature 
process heat for heavy industrial operations such as mining, chemicals and 
manufacturing

 Westinghouse: a 400MWe lead-cooled fast reactor technology that uses mixed oxide 
fuel

 Tokamak Energy: an advanced modular fusion reactor design
 

The Cumbria Nuclear Prospectus highlights opportunities for West Cumbria to support the 
development and deployment of these technologies including the development of advanced 
fuels.

Nuclear Sector Deal Update

In July, the Nuclear Industry Council released a document entitled “40 by 50”, which sets out 
a roadmap for the UK to meet its net zero by 2050 target.

More recently, the Nuclear Sector Deal New Build Cost Reduction Working Group released a 
report that sets out the key factors to reduce risk and bring down the cost of new nuclear 
power plant projects by 30% by 2030. This follows the successful demonstration of this 
approach by the Offshore Wind sector.

NNLAG Update

With expected UK energy policy announcements in the autumn, the New Nuclear Local 
Authorities Group (NNLAG) has arranged an officers meeting on 7th October.

Geological Disposal and Radioactive Waste Management Update

Members will recall that following the launch of the Government’s Working with 
Communities (WwC) policy and process in December 2018, the Council arranged a 
programme of Member briefings and presentations from a number of key stakeholders 
within the process including RWM Ltd, NDA, SL and CoRWM. In addition, and in view of the 
launch of the WwC process, a number of workshops with SNEB Members were held in the 
early part of this year to reconsider the Council’s Nuclear Position Statements, specifically in 
relation to the long-term management of higher activity radioactive waste. These 
workshops also provided an opportunity for Members to consider the latest information 
regarding potential ‘Interested Parties’ in Copeland. One outcome from the workshops and 

Page 30



Full Council 220920

9

briefing sessions was that an amended set of Nuclear Position Statements were considered 
and subsequently agreed by Executive at its meeting on 16th March. As reported to Council 
in May, the intention was for the revised statement to provide an up to date and clear 
position to enable the Council to respond to any potential approaches from ‘interested 
parties’ as defined within the WwC process.

At an informal meeting of SNEB held on 16th June Members received an update on GDF 
matters which referred to on-going engagement with RWM, the latest position regarding 
Interested Parties in Copeland and elsewhere across the country and a potential route map 
and process to establishing a Working Group, should one of the Interested Parties choose to 
do so.  Forming a Working Group is just a first step to opening discussions, scoping the 
questions and helping people find out more about the subject.  If the process were to move 
beyond this, then a Community Partnership would have to be formed with at least one 
relevant principal local authority taking part.  Such a Community Partnership would be 
based on an area and initial membership identified by the Working Group.

At the formal SNEB meeting held on 6th July, Members considered a paper on the current 
position with the UK Government’s approach to identifying a site for a Geological Disposal 
Facility (GDF) for higher-activity radioactive waste.  The report included reference of the 
potential for an Interested Party to push to establish a Working Group and the ‘route map’ 
that RWM Ltd would use to support the process to the Working Group stage. 

At a meeting of the Executive on 21st July, Members received an update paper similar to 
that considered by SNEB on 6th July. In the discussion at the meeting Executive Members 
proposed and agreed a number of additional recommendations to the one in the report. 

That:

 in recognition of the progress that RWM Ltd are making in their search for a suitable 
site and a willing community to host a GDF, and the potential ‘route map’ of the steps 
that they would need to take to establish a Working Group, which is the first public 
facing stage of the Working with Communities process should an interested party take 
that decision to proceed to establish a Working Group.

 in view of the Council’s position statement on GDF, which was agreed by Executive in 
March, containing the following key messages;

 Regardless of final location for a GDF the Copeland community is affected as current 
host for the vast majority of materials that are identified in the Working with 
Communities (WWC) Policy for disposal to a GDF and the Sellafield site will be at the 
front end of the operational phase of a GDF, again regardless of final location, for 
many decades to come

Page 31



Full Council 220920

10

 Working in the best interests of our community the Council will engage in the 
process to better understand the implications for our communities and the Council 
reserves the right to vary or withdraw the nature of our involvement.

 The Council’s engagement at the Working Group stage does not presuppose support 
for a GDF in Copeland or West Cumbria. According to the WwC process, any future 
decision on this matter will be subject to a future Test of Public Support. In the early 
stages, we consider it our duty to our community to engage in the process to 
understand the implications for Copeland of this project.

The Council opens up discussions with RWM Ltd with a view to establishing a Working 
Group in Copeland to explore any potential suitable sites for consideration as a location for 
a GDF with the following conditions attached:

1. That those areas of the Borough currently within the boundary of the Lake District 
National Park are excluded from any consideration from the outset

2. That in recognition of the current Working with Communities process which allows 
for a GDF to be located in an ‘in-shore area’, that the in-shore area off the coast of 
Copeland is worthy of consideration

3. That the Council wants to see a credible and independent Chair appointed to the 
Working Group and that all the Councils legitimate costs of engaging in the process 
are covered

Currently the Council is working with RWM and the various Interested Parties across the 
Borough on a range of issues that need to be considered in the process leading up to the 
launch of a Working Group

Offshore & Onshore Wind Updates

Offshore Wind:

In July, members of SNEB were presented an introductory paper outlining the Crown Estates 
Offshore Wind leasing process, which is currently underway. The areas of seabed identified 
in Round 4 includes an area beyond St Bees Head and therefore is of interest to the Council.

This development, should it go ahead, would be a Nationally Significant Infrastructure 
Project, to which the council would be a statutory consultee.

The development itself aligns with Cumbria’s clean energy ambitions and would be 
complementary to the Cumbria Nuclear Prospectus, potentially creating supply 
chain/operations and maintenance opportunities for Whitehaven and elsewhere on the 
West Coast.

Page 32



Full Council 220920

11

Onshore Wind:

The three applications for the repowering existing windfarms in the Borough; Haverigg II, 
Haverigg III and Lowca are still pending.  Outstanding issues relating to ecology are being 
addressed and decisions are expected mid to late autumn.

Human Resources and Health and Safety Update 

Covid 19 Advice and Support

The role of the HR and H&S Service has been to advise and support Managers to ensure that 
the health and safety requirements of all employees were met.  The key areas of support 
has been to focus on: 

1. Coordination of absence levels for reporting of Covid 19;
2. Ensuring Line Managers have the correct guidance to manage their teams during this 

time.  The output of this has been the implementation of the Covid Return to Work 
Policy and Guidance document;

3. Partnership working with Property, ICT and the Communications department to 
ensure the transition of our employees back to the workplace.  This was completed 
by ensuring that the building was Covid19 compliant and employees knew the 
standards to adhere to.  Teams have returned to the workplace on a phased and rota 
basis.

Please note that the intention is still to achieve ISO 45001 and bronze criteria of the TUC 
Health at Work Award in the first quarter of 2021 therefore, evidence has being gained 
against both criteria during this period.

Reshape

Our aim is to become a Modern and Progressive Council offering excellent services to our 
residents.  This is an exciting time for some employees embracing what change brings 
however, at the Council, we are aware that this might be a journey that some employees do 
not want to be part of for a variety of understandable reasons.   We therefore offered in the 
middle of August an opportunity for our employees to consider voluntary redundancy, in 
situations where the business could support that as an outcome. The closing date of this 
process is Friday 11 September 2020 as at the date of the report we have had 21 
applications.

Page 33



Full Council 220920

12

Vacancy Management

There has been key recruitment activity below since May 2020 in various operational areas 
of:

External Appointments:
Community Services Manager Community Services
Strategic Finance Accountant Finance
Buy Local Scheme Coordinator Corporate Services
Internal Appointments:
Technical Assistant / Technical Officer / EHO (Career 
Grade) Environmental Health
Social Inclusion and Community Resilience Team Leader Housing

Review of Human Resources Policies and Processes

We are aware that there is a requirement for a review of our HR policies and the HR team 
are working in partnership with the Policy Officer to gain momentum and drive to refresh 
these.  In this period the Support for Employees who are suffering from Domestic Abuse and 
the Employee Well-being Policies have been developed and implemented.

Employee Relations Support 

During this time, there has been a concentrated effort to support Managers on reducing the 
absence rate within the Council, which since May 2020 has reduced from 1.16 % to 0.53 %. 

Embedding the People Strategy

As the People Strategy was agreed in December 2019 the Council now has a clear direction 
for development of their employees therefore, in this period the Council has delivered 
learning and development focused on increasing skills within health and safety, 
safeguarding and equality and diversity.  

HR Digital Agenda

The team are driving digital projects to support the department becoming more efficient 
and the workload over the past period has been development of the three projects with the 
aim for implementation by the end of the financial year:

1. Development of the HR Intranet.  This will ensure all Managers and Employees will 
have relevant HR information which is accessible easily;

Page 34



Full Council 220920

13

2. Development of a HR Help Desk.  As we are a small team this will ensure the HR & 
H&S workflow is managed well;

3. Implementation of a HR Information System.  A working system of MS Dynamics 365 
has been identified as an operating model of choice. The next stage is to identify a 
partner to support the implementation.

Electoral and Democratic Services

The Electoral Registration Annual Canvass is currently underway, having commenced on 1st 
July 2020, with publication of the new electoral register due on 1 December 2020. 

Each year, the Electoral Registration Officer has a legal duty to conduct an annual canvass to 
ensure the electoral register is accurate and complete. 

The 2020 annual canvass has been reformed by the Cabinet Office. Canvass reform means 
that we now use national and local data matching to determine the type of communication 
we need to send to individual households.  As a result of the data matching exercise, 82% of 
the properties in Copeland were identified as matched. Matched properties are ones where 
we have been able to match all registered electors with either the national or local 
databases, and are therefore confident that the information is accurate.  These properties 
have now received an email, text message, and/or a letter outlining the details currently 
held on the electoral register. If the details were correct, no further action was needed from 
the occupants. If details had changed, occupants needed to inform us of the change, and 
were encouraged to respond online.

The remaining 18% of properties are unmatched, these are currently being canvassed in a 
similar way to that of previous years, insofar as we need to make at least three contact 
attempts to obtain the information.  Under Canvass Reform, we now have greater flexibility 
in the communication methods we can use to target these properties.  At the time of 
writing, of the 5894 unmatched properties, 45% have so far responded to our 
communications. 

Legislation is expected soon to extend the publication date from 1st December 2020 to 1st 
February 2021.  This will be a decision for the Electoral Registration Officer to take should 
we need too, however, at present we are working to a publication date of 1st December 
2020. 

Page 35



Full Council 220920

14

Commercial Services – Councillor Steven Morgan

Customer Services

Customer services has had a significant increased demand as would be expected following 
the closure of our face to face offering at the end of Q1 due to the Covid-19 pandemic. 
Increases of an average of 28% in calls and 38% in email traffic has been observed over 
Q2/Q3 in comparison to 19/20 figs. 

The team who have been working from a home or office based setting have performed 
strongly, adapting to new ways of working and technology whilst balancing resourcing 
issues, redeployment of staff and leave.

Face-to-Face appointments with the public will commence at the Market Hall on an 
appointment only basis on 14 September 2020. Feedback received from department heads 
suggest that they do not anticipate significant demand as customers appear to have coped 
well with current work practices. 

Provision for those disadvantaged customers who do not have the means to contact us is 
supported by the free telephone sited in the vestibule; this enables contact to our customer 
services and homelessness teams during opening hours.

Phased opening of other sites are expected at a later date.

Copeland Tourism Sector Development

A key driver for tourism has continued to be supporting our tourism and leisure sector 
during the Covid-19 lockdown, working alongside our Revenues, Environmental Health and 
Communications teams, helping to ensure that our eligible businesses receive the grant 
support that they need and are supported to open as lockdown was lifted.  This has included 
regular newsletters with updates on grant information and links to available support.

As part of supporting tourism this summer and responding to the staycation market, we 
have been working with Cumbria Tourism to promote Copeland under the Lake District 
Coast banner and supporting recovery campaigns including “Eat out to help out”, “Ready to 
Go” and “Perfect Place to be”.  This is being supported through the updated Western Lake 
District and Coast website that is bringing together the network of tourism businesses to 
support growth and enable existing businesses to take advantage of emerging markets.

Community Services

As government restrictions started to relax at the beginning of July the Community Services 
department started to return to some form of normality with the reintroduction of three 

Page 36



Full Council 220920

15

crew in a cab, weekend operations for street cleansing and the return of enforcement 
officers. 

We continue to face challenges as we still have people who remain furloughed due to 
personal circumstances and where we have had to instruct staff to self-isolate to ensure we 
continue to abide by government guidance.  We have faced ongoing vehicle issues and the 
crews having worked tirelessly throughout the pandemic to ensure we have continued to 
deliver services are now tiring and are taking well-deserved annual leave. 

The tonnage collected by the kerbside recycling crews is reaching all-time highs, which is 
extremely positive and we hope as time goes on the trend continues. However, this also 
adds pressure to the service and does at times mean we are unable to complete rounds on 
the specified day of collection. The general waste tonnage is also increasing resulting in 
additional trips to the transfer station for these crews as well. Garden waste has continued 
to be collected on a four weekly basis to ensure that we have sufficient staff to cover all 
areas of the services we deliver. This is due to cease at the end of November. Many of the 
trade waste customers are now back on service with us and a large number of new 
customers have also signed up.

Street Cleansing have now returned to delivering a seven-day a week service and 
enforcement officers are back out and about with people who litter and fly tip being 
educated and challenged. The dedicated back office staff who have continued to work 
throughout the pandemic continue to support the whole team.

Parks and Open Spaces

APSE Performance
Each year Copeland Borough Council’s Parks & Open Spaces team submits performance 
data to the Association of Public Sector of Excellence and is benchmarked against a family 
group of 13 other comparable local authorities.  The latest APSE performance results 
(2018/19) continue to show that Copeland has not only improved its annual ranking, 
provides the best value parks and open space maintenance service, scoring best in its group.

Measures reveal that costs per 1000 head of population (£4523) decreased by £1040 per 
household when compared to the previous year.  The average cost for the APSE group of 13 
comparable local authorities in 2018/19 was £10,920 with the highest being £24,619 and 
Copeland the lowest at £4,523.  The Councils costs per household of £9.21 showed a 21% 
reduction per household when compared to the previous year, and is the lowest of all 13 
comparable councils. Our cost is significantly lower than the average cost for the APSE 
grouping in 2018/19, which was £24.73, the highest costs being £46.85, with Copeland 
Borough Council scoring the lowest at £9.21.

Page 37



Full Council 220920

16

APSE Performance 
Indicator

17/18 Position 18/19 Position

Maintenance cost 
per 1000 head of 
population (PI 42b)

£5,563

5th in 
family 

group of 
17 

£4,523

Best 
(cheapest) 

in the 
group of 

13

Maintenance cost 
per Household (PI 
43b)

£11.71

5th in 
family 

group of 
17

£9.21

Best 
(cheapest) 

in the 
group of 

13

APSE performance networks is the largest voluntary public sector benchmarking service 
across England, Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland. Used by over 200 local authorities it 
leads the way in local government benchmarking.  APSE performance networks use a ‘like-
for-like’ system to group authorities, ensuring that a fair indication of performance can be 
made. The ‘like-for-like’ system draws on factors such as local policy, demography and size 
and type of operation to form the groupings.
 
APSE performance networks is recognised as a trusted and robust source of performance 
data within local government and the model met all criteria in an assessment of consistency, 
reliability and comparability of data required by the Audit Commission. The model has also 
been described as “well established and trusted to deliver information” by an independent 
validation by the Institute of local government studies (Inlogov) and data undergoes a 
rigorous error checking and three stage validation procedure to ensure that its data is 
robust.

Grounds Maintenance
Our Parks team have continued to operate during the Covid-19 lock-down period to ensure 
that our parks and green spaces were maintained and accessible for public use and 
enjoyment during this period, recognising the important contribution green spaces make to 
supporting health and wellbeing.  

In addition to maintaining the Council’s green space estate, the team deliver grounds 
maintenance services to external clients including Town and Parish Councils, schools and 
sports clubs.  Some contract renewals and delivery this year have been impacted by Covid-

Page 38



Full Council 220920

17

19 however, we are pleased to report that commercial activity has been steadily increasing 
again since the relaxation of lock down.  

Alongside external services, the team have been delivering a range of works for internal 
departments including Environmental Health, Waste and Property, and supporting the 
range of office moves and team relocation activities currently underway across the estate.

Love Parks 
Keep Britain Tidy has developed a new ‘Love Parks’ campaign to address the issue of litter 
being left behind in parks and green spaces across the country. The free materials available 
for use digitally are being used to promote the campaign message and highlight the locations 
of environmental crimes in parks and green spaces in Copeland.  The Parks team will also 
working alongside our Waste Services and Communications team colleagues who will be 
leading on a wider campaign of street and open space litter through the Great British Clean 
Up Campaign in September.  

Best Kept Garden Competition
The Council recently held the Best Kept Garden competition as part of its Copeland Pride of 
Place campaign. The campaign has been key to the borough’s significant reduction in fly 
tipping and littering over the past two years, and in celebrating residents who take pride in 
their environment.  There were 21 entries from across the Borough, all of which were 
impressive in their own right, ranging from less formal environments through to formal and 
well-established gardens.  The winning gardeners in Bigrigg received a £50 gardening 
voucher courtesy of a local garden centre in Whitehaven.  

Footway Lighting
As far back as 2013, Copeland Borough Council’s Executive reviewed our footway lighting 
policy and it was recognised that the Council could not continue to maintain the current 
level of footway lights within existing revenue budgets.  The Council agreed to continue to 
facilitate requests for new lights, but only on the basis that all capital and revenue costs are 
wholly funded by a third party such as a Town or Parish Council.   In addition, the Council’s 
position is that it will only continue to maintain existing lights for as long as they are 
considered structurally sound and compliant with safety requirements.  The current 
consultation and engagement exercise to review and prioritise footways lights continues to 
see the implementation of our policy position and provides Town and Parish Councils with 
an opportunity to influence a sustainable approach for managing and maintaining footway 
lighting should they continue to be required, and in advance of further assets being 
discontinued.

In February the Director of Corporate and Commercial Services wrote to Town and Parish 
Councils enclosing further information on our footway lighting consultation and invited all 

Page 39



Full Council 220920

18

to respond.  Whilst feedback had been delayed, partly as a result of our collective response 
to the global pandemic, recent constructive discussions were held with CALC on working 
collaboratively to achieve a sustainable solution for footway lighting, as we continue to 
implement our footway lighting policy.  

Through the consultation exercise and discussions with Town and Parish Councils we have 
been working to review, update and prioritise our footway lighting inventory to allow us to 
quantify and define the opportunities for future management and transfer to others.  Given 
the opportunities that exist with other landowners and those in highway settings, the aim is 
to do this as fairly as possible whilst understanding local priorities and needs.  Work will now 
commence to review the feedback received and to develop our proposals to the next stage.  

Grounds Maintenance Survey
Each year we contact customers of our commercial grounds maintenance service to survey 
their experience of working with us, ensure they are satisfied with the services we deliver, 
and to invite feedback on how we may be able to improve or expand the services we 
provide.  This valuable feedback ensures that we can continually review and improve the 
services we provide and we encourage our current or previous customers to participate in 
the survey, which can be accessed here.

Bereavement Services
Our Bereavement Services team continues to support our communities at this difficult time. 
We have introduced a range of measures to ensure that funeral services can continue to 
take place at Distington Hall Crematorium and in our cemeteries in line with Government 
guidance, which can be found here.  

The latest Government guidance strongly encourages people to wear a face covering in 
enclosed public spaces, and this extends to funeral services in crematoria.  The crematorium 
chapel is currently able to accommodate a maximum number of 30 attendees at any one 
time (including the funeral director and clergy/celebrant), however social distancing must 
be observed between attendees and family groupings, which may limit the attendance 
capacity.  We continue to work closely with our funeral directors to manage and record 
attendance at funeral services where it is advised that only a modest number of family and 
friends of the deceased should travel to and attend services.   We understand how difficult 
and upsetting this advice will be but it is important that this continues to be respected for 
the safety of all.

Whilst the Chapel of Remembrance remains closed, an online version of the Book of 
Remembrance is available to view here.

Page 40

https://www.surveymonkey.co.uk/r/NVFNCCK
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-guidance-for-managing-a-funeral-during-the-coronavirus-pandemic/covid-19-guidance-for-managing-a-funeral-during-the-coronavirus-pandemic
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcopelandbc.us10.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9cecfee91ad99fbfef0603e5d%26id%3D70646ac2d7%26e%3Dce17adc6c7&data=01%7C01%7Cjames.hunter%40copeland.gov.uk%7Ca19dae4078f24d3d209308d7eab8921f%7Cb6d1253e02e144bb8e79fe4ee8606cf0%7C1&sdata=x9eFzp3hM2kjtVKZ3g6Eif3m95%2FbGeUl1Xa%2FxhTzoV4%3D&reserved=0


Full Council 220920

19

We continue to promote a range of partner organisations who provide advice and guidance 
for those who have suffered a bereavement including – the NHS, Cruse, Age UK - coping 
with bereavement and arranging a funeral

The Beacon

The Beacon Museum has reopened for September 2020, after a refresh of exhibition layouts 
and the implementation of a thorough COVID-safe plan.  The museum is fully accessible with 
a revised one-way system, gallery capacity restrictions and cleaning regimen enforced by 
the upskilled visitor host team. Whilst initial numbers have been extremely encouraging, the 
team are under no illusion about the challenges posed currently to all heritage attractions, 
and moving forward the goal will be to engage local users to visit during the off-season and 
also attract return visitors who have been unable to attend. 

Schools outreach will be adapted to get our renowned learning programme to where the 
pupils are, with school visits likely to be affected for a prolonged time. This will be a key 
focus in the museum digitisation programme which is currently being rolled out, with new 
installations being installed monthly in our galleries until February. The feel of the museum 
will change with new exhibits adding to or replacing text panels and older parts of the 
exhibition. The refresh will also enable the team to digitise elements of the museum 
collection and offer much better outreach both in events and in remotely accessible digital 
content. It is understood that Sellafield will be re-evaluating the content within the Sellafield 
story exhibition during 2021, with a similar refresh on the horizon. 

The annual exhibitions and events programme has been understandably affected by the 
closure and delay of plans for 2020. Some exhibitions such as the current feature BEARS! 
have been rescheduled from September onwards into 2021. However, with many plans 
abandoned the team are working to reduce dependency on external exhibitions as a long-
term goal. This would aim to deliver more frequent small changes to the museum with the 
addition of the new digital experiences mirroring local content with greater opportunities 
for volunteering and community involvement. 

One element that will be changing during the autumn months will be the reopening of the 
Beacon hospitality space, formerly known as the Wellington Bistro. Renovation work has 
been completed after lockdown delays during the spring and summer months to replace the 
floor and elements of the roof structure. The space will be marketed in coming weeks to 
find a new tenant that will work closely with the museum to deliver a food service for both 
visitors and passing footfall. With guaranteed footfall and prime location, the team are 
confident that a suitor will be found quickly and we ask for your help in sharing this 
opportunity. 

Page 41

https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcopelandbc.us10.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9cecfee91ad99fbfef0603e5d%26id%3Df898529bfd%26e%3Dce17adc6c7&data=01%7C01%7Cjames.hunter%40copeland.gov.uk%7Ca19dae4078f24d3d209308d7eab8921f%7Cb6d1253e02e144bb8e79fe4ee8606cf0%7C1&sdata=MGBA69IyD94OvvWzMG6nLv5wkvXbFQbo1KwCPv0CRa4%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcopelandbc.us10.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9cecfee91ad99fbfef0603e5d%26id%3Dd3f2bb14f2%26e%3Dce17adc6c7&data=01%7C01%7Cjames.hunter%40copeland.gov.uk%7Ca19dae4078f24d3d209308d7eab8921f%7Cb6d1253e02e144bb8e79fe4ee8606cf0%7C1&sdata=mc9vV6dnNKG%2B8UkZlz2w%2FGPFID8bLdb%2BzkALWZtd%2FSU%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcopelandbc.us10.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9cecfee91ad99fbfef0603e5d%26id%3D60ea2d8f54%26e%3Dce17adc6c7&data=01%7C01%7Cjames.hunter%40copeland.gov.uk%7Ca19dae4078f24d3d209308d7eab8921f%7Cb6d1253e02e144bb8e79fe4ee8606cf0%7C1&sdata=Q6ASBPDkmgEoG%2BBWpfPPY3aLKvwdvY6gi%2FJnvd9RKAM%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcopelandbc.us10.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9cecfee91ad99fbfef0603e5d%26id%3D60ea2d8f54%26e%3Dce17adc6c7&data=01%7C01%7Cjames.hunter%40copeland.gov.uk%7Ca19dae4078f24d3d209308d7eab8921f%7Cb6d1253e02e144bb8e79fe4ee8606cf0%7C1&sdata=Q6ASBPDkmgEoG%2BBWpfPPY3aLKvwdvY6gi%2FJnvd9RKAM%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcopelandbc.us10.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9cecfee91ad99fbfef0603e5d%26id%3D8a9fc632f7%26e%3Dce17adc6c7&data=01%7C01%7Cjames.hunter%40copeland.gov.uk%7Ca19dae4078f24d3d209308d7eab8921f%7Cb6d1253e02e144bb8e79fe4ee8606cf0%7C1&sdata=lQcrFDQkZXHByR9NY1DS4Ors9OIm8z%2FuKW024xBKrq0%3D&reserved=0


Full Council 220920

20

Procurement Briefing Note

By working alongside Project Teams, Procurement have successfully advertised the following 
opportunities to ensure value for money and compliance with Pubic Contract Regulations 
2015 and our Contract Standing Orders, including:

 Consultancy Services to assist in the preparation of town investment plans and full 
business cases to support Towns Fund Initiative applications

 Purchase of blue refuse sacks
 Construction of a new Beach Café at Silecroft Beach, Millom
 Future High Streets Fund: Initial Professional Services (Utilising Cumbria County 

Council Framework)
 Connecting Copelands Hidden Coast - Photography of Copeland Coast
 Connecting Copelands Hidden Coast – Film/Drone Footage of Copeland Coast

The Beach Café construction tender is still in progress and will close on 5th October 2020 to 
allow evaluation to take place.

Other scheduled projects in the preparation stages ready for tender and currently liaising 
with Procurement are:

o 3G Artificial Grass Pitch at Cleator Moor Activity Centre in conjunction with Greenwich 
Leisure

o Building Maintenance of Council owned buildings
o Refurbishment of roof covering at Distington Crematorium Chapel
o Flood prevention work on flap valves at Parton and Millom
o Footway lighting inspection contract
o Building Cleaning for all Council owned buildings

Future scheduled projects

The proposed use of framework agreements for the following:
 The replacement of multi-functional devices (printers/scanners) across the authority 

– this was held for review given the recent pandemic and our need for this service 
visibly reduced

 Continuing electronic payment collection services for residents
 Professional services for an Initial Assessment of the coastal erosion and flood risk at 

St Bees and Seascale as part of Flood and Coastal Risk Management
 New IT System for social housing allocations – County wide procurement with other 

Local Authorities and Housing Associations (led by South Lakes District Council) 
 Future High Streets Fund: Major Works – subject to grant approval
 Insolvency Resolution Services

Page 42



Full Council 220920

21

 Postal Services for Revenues and Benefits
 Council Tax reduction scheme Modelling

There has been a positive increase in procurement activity throughout the whole Authority 
during the first half of the year with department interactions with the service on the rise 
compared to previous years. The current pandemic has fortunately had little impact on the 
running of the Procurement Service.  There have been only minor changes to processes and 
ways of working which are now well embedded into the service, with Procurement - like the 
majority of staff – mitigating the change to remote working successfully.   The pandemic has 
understandably brought about many changes within the Procurement field and a number of 
issued Procurement policy notes from Government has resulted in an increase in the number 
of free webinars available from advisors to directly assist buyers with the potential impact of 
COVID19, which have all been well received.  Our Procurement software provider have also 
introduced detailed webinar training on the different functionalities of our procurement 
portal; and we have used these to our advantage by committing some time to improve the 
portal and streamline processes.  

Environment, Place and Inclusive Communities – Councillor Andy Pratt 

Environment 

Zero Carbon Cumbria Partnership

The Cumbria Climate Change Working Group established by the Cumbria Leaders Board in 
2019 has successfully secured £2.5m of grant funding from the National Lottery Climate 
Action Fund, one of 15 recipients from an initial 600 UK-wide applications. This funding will 
support the delivery of a countywide community-led programme of interventions aimed at 
reducing emissions and creating sustainable long-term impacts across areas including 
community energy generation, what we eat and what we buy. The funding includes 
allocations for:

 Shared officer support to local authorities in development and implementation of 
climate/environment plans 

 Establishment of governance structures relating to climate action, and giving young 
people a voice in holding leaders to account over emissions 

 Education and learning 
 Community support and events 
 Funding and expert support for community energy projects 

Renewables

Page 43



Full Council 220920

22

Earlier this year a grant was awarded to the Council from the Local Government Association’s 
Productivity Expert Programme. This Programme aims to help local authorities identify 
opportunities to generate efficiencies and/or income. Using the grant funding, the Council 
has appointed expert consultants to deliver this piece of work.

The project will:

 Assess the energy efficiency of the Council’s properties;
 Undertake an assessment of existing vehicle fleet to understand potential for 

electrification;
 Explore the opportunity for rooftop solar installation on council properties to offset 

energy costs; and,
 Identify and examine potential sites for commercial-scale solar generation.
This project contributes to both the Council’s climate action/carbon reduction plans and to 
the commercialisation agenda.

Strategic Housing

Homelessness

Impact of the Pandemic on Services
The team has seen an increase in demand of over 500% since March 2020.  Much of the 
contact has been around housing advice and fear of losing tenancies during the pandemic.  
The team have dealt with far more homeless people (i.e. people who had nowhere to stay 
that night) than over the same period last year; with 27 compared to 7 between April and 
August last year.  

The majority of the homeless cases have been young single people or couples asked to leave 
by family and friends during lock down.  Often the cause of homelessness has been due to 
chaotic or risky behaviour.   Of those people, all bar 5 have been permanently rehoused.  
Those 5 are people who are chaotic drug or alcohol users and whose behaviour needs to be 
managed in a supported environment.  They are accommodated in temporary 
accommodation whilst a pathway for them is found.

Domestic Abuse
We have supported double the number of domestic abuse victims than during the same 
period last year with 46 as opposed to 23 last year.  The take up was initially slow but 
following a publicity campaign, it increased to unprecedented numbers.  We are currently 
supporting 3 males who are victims of abuse at home and a transgender person and so it is 
important to stress that the service is gender neutral.

Page 44



Full Council 220920

23

MHCLG Funding Round
MHCLG began working actively within Cumbria last year and facilitated funding for 1.5 
workers with rough sleepers and sofa-surfers.  This has been critical during the pandemic. 
MHCLG has now opened a new round of funding called Next Steps Accommodation 
Programme (NSAP) to ensure no one housed during the pandemic goes back to being 
homeless.  Copeland BC and Impact Housing Association has submitted a joint bid for a 
project of around a million pounds of capital and revenue over 3 years.  The project is to bring 
an empty property in Impact’s ownership back into use as 4 flats for homeless people with 
challenging behaviour and substance abuse and create a 24 support service around the flats.  
The Copeland Police Hub and Unity Drug and Alcohol services have been involved in 
supporting the idea.  This will assist with people such as those described above that are hard 
to house and referral, should we get the funding, will be via the Councils Homeless Service.

Housing Strategy
Housing Needs Survey

The 2020 Housing Needs Survey has been completed and key findings will be presented to 
OSC prior to its launch on 17th September 2020 at the Copeland Housing Partnership.  

The Council has a statutory duty to assess housing need under the Housing Act 1985.  The 
Housing Needs Survey is commissioned by Strategic Housing to assess current and projected 
future housing need across all tenure types and demographic.  This process complements 
the Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA), which supports the Local Plan and the 
Private Sector Stock Condition Survey as well as informing Corporate Housing and Planning 
Policies. It is also used to inform planning application responses. The last survey was 
commissioned in 2011. 

The survey was sent out via post, with an option to reply digitally, to a random sample of 
households in the following areas: 
Whitehaven – 1/3 of households
Cleator Moor, Egremont and Millom – 80% of households

100% sample for: 
Arlecdon & Rowrah; Beckermet; Bigrigg; Calderbridge; Cleator; Distington; Drigg & 
Holmrook; Frizington; Haverigg; Keekle; Kirkland & Ennerdale Bridge; Low Moresby & 
Howgate; Lowca; Moor Row; Moresby Parks; Parton; Sandwith; Seascale; St Bees; The Hill, 
The Green & Hallthwaites and Thornhill.

In total 2652, responses were received from a mailing of 24,963 (10.6% response rate).  
Lower than hoped due to COVID but the consultants are confident it is a reliable sample 
from which to draw conclusions.

Page 45



Full Council 220920

24

Of those that replies:

 80% of properties are owned, and almost half of those owned outright. 
 75% of people aged up to 34 own their own homes, reflecting relatively low process 

and high earnings.
 Dominant household size was 2 people (42%) followed by 1 person (29%)
 There were low levels of dissatisfaction with the ability of the property to meet 

needs (3%) and condition (4%)
 Where conditions were considered poor the main reasons were damp/mould issues 

(42%) and general repair (33%)
 There are very few one bed homes – half of all properties had 3 bedrooms with 2 

beds being the next popular. 
 Most tenures were spread fairly evenly but there are higher proportions of Housing 

Association tenants in Cleator Moor and Egremont and lower proportions of private 
renters in the Whitehaven Rural Housing Market sub-area.

 22% of respondents recorded a household member limited in their day to day 
activities by disability or long term illness (mostly in older groups)

 6% of the sample expected to need adaptations to their property in the next  5 years
 22% of respondents thought they would move in the next 5 years (highest amongst 

younger groups)
 46% of newly forming households cannot afford to buy an averaged priced property 

without spending more than 33% of their gross income on a mortgage and a third 
cannot afford a lower quartile home – indicating an unmet need for affordable 
housing

 The older stock profile across Copeland (particularly in the private sector) means 
properties are difficult to adapt and do not lend themselves to wheelchair use. 

 There is a clear need for additional bungalows to buy and rent across the whole 
market, sheltered and extra care housing as well as for new developments to be built 
to ‘lifetime standards’ – catering for buyers and renters.

 There is no strong indication of a drift away from rural areas to urban ones. 
 The main market for Town Centre dwellings are young professionals, contractors and 

overseas students, who seek good quality rented accommodation. 

The final report will include conclusions and recommendations for each Parish/Town 
surveyed, and will be available to all members upon request after launch on 17th September. 

Copeland Work & Skills Partnership

As a result of Coronavirus, some elements to the programme have been adapted to 
enhance accessibility of clients.  

Page 46



Full Council 220920

25

 IAG NVQs – 17 candidates have engaged with IAG qualifications at Level 3 / 4 
during the first year of the programme and 5 candidates completed qualifications 
this summer.

 Sector Development / Bespoke Support – An online bespoke support programme 
has been delivered during August offering mini-masterclasses.  The aim of these 
motivational speaking sessions has been to help individuals to create a foundation 
of positive change in their lives to gain and retain jobs and relationships.  A total of 
102 individuals have engaged over four sessions.
An online Sector Based Work Academy Programme working in conjunction with 
Wyndham Manor Care Home was completed during July.  The aim of the 
programme was to prepare individuals for work in a residential care home in roles 
such as Care Coordinators, Support Workers, Domestic Assistants and Kitchen 
Assistants.  Eight unemployed individuals completed the programme with five 
being offered jobs at the end of the programme. 

 Employability Fund – Three individuals have benefited from being support by the 
Employability Fund.  One individual, currently being supported by Groundwork 
Choices, is able to complete an online course (Mental Health L2) due to now having 
access to IT equipment.  Two individuals have been supported with the costs 
towards their SIA Licence applications and have secured employment as a result.

 Apprentice Subsidy – Three individuals commenced apprenticeships during June – 
August.  Employers supporting apprentices include Paul Douglas Building & 
Groundworks and Together We Can x 2.

 Wage Subsidy – Four candidates have secured employment via the wage subsidy 
workstream this quarter.  Employers who have recruited include: Joe Moyes 
Carpentry, Ennerdale Brewery, Maxwell Flooring and The Helpful Book Company.  
Of the five candidates who have completed the 26-week programme to date, all 
have remained in employment with their respective employer. 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2019/20

LEAD MEMBER: Cllr John Kane
LEAD OFFICER: Sarah Pemberton, Director of Corporate Services 

and Commercial Strategy (Monitoring Officer)
REPORT AUTHOR: James Young, Scrutiny Officer

Why has this report come to the Council? 
The Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2019/20 must be presented to 
the Council in accordance with the Constitution.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

The Council are recommended to:

a) Note the Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2019/20

1. BACKGROUND 

1.1 In accordance with the Constitution of Copeland Borough Council the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) must report annually to the 
Council on its work.

1.2 The purpose of the report is to highlight the work of the Committee, 
explain how the scrutiny function of the Council operates and 
encourage wider participation from Council members and the public.

1.3 The OSC Work Programme has been significantly impacted by the 
Covid-19 pandemic and this is reflected in the report.

     

Background Paper and Appendices:

Appendix A – Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2019-2020

Page 49

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Overview and Scrutiny 
Annual Report 2019-2020

Page 51



Page 2 of 9

2
Chair’s Forward

I would like to start the introduction of the 2019-20 Overview and Scrutiny 
Annual Report by paying tribute and thanking the following people; James Young 
(Scrutiny Officer), Cllr Fee Wilson (Deputy Chair) and all the councillors and 
council staff whose dedication and commitment is unquestionable. 

The municipal year of 2019/2020 will never be forgotten, the COVID-19 pandemic 
and the ensuing ongoing pandemic has changed every aspect of our lives and the 
way Copeland Borough Council operates for the foreseeable future. From our 
directly elected Mayor, all the councillors and every council employee whose 
flexibility and adaptability to change is a shining beacon in our community, I 
thank you.

We held eight Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) meetings from June 2019 
until February 2020 when events overtook us. All of the OSC committee members 
attended a fantastic Scrutiny training course organised by our officer James.

This pandemic and subsequent 
lockdown has highlighted the 
importance of one of our 
ongoing working group on 
facilities and social well-being 
for the older persons and we 
hope to carry on this work 
whenever that is possible.

Overview and scrutiny will be 
crucial in ensuring that 
Copeland’s recovery from the 
pandemic is robust and will 
continue to ensure 
transparency and accountability 
in the decision making process. 
This will ensure that Copeland 
and its communities come back 
better and stronger from this 
crisis.

Page 52



Page 3 of 9

3
Table of Contents

Introduction Page 4

2019-2020 Highlights Page 5

Constitution Changes - Planning Page 5

Constitution Changes – Overview and Scrutiny Page 6

Disabled Facilities Grants Page 6

Empty Homes Page 7

Conclusion and Next Steps Page 7

Scrutiny Contact Details Page 8

Page 53



Page 4 of 9

4
1.0 Introduction

1.1 Welcome to the 2019-20 Annual Report on the overview and scrutiny 
function of Copeland Borough Council (CBC). This report will detail the 
work of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC.

1.2 Scrutiny is one of the main checks and balances to the power of the 
Executive. The key roles of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee are:

 Ensuring the Executive is accountable; this enables more 
transparent and effective decision making. This includes the power 
to ‘call-in’ a decision made by the Executive that has not yet been 
implemented.

 Reviewing and developing policies; the Committee supports the 
development of effective policies and initiatives through policy 
review and development.

 Ensuring the continuous improvement of Council Services; receiving 
quarterly performance and finance reports to ensure that the 
Council is performing to the best of its abilities for its residents.

1.3 In 2019-20 the members of the Copeland Borough Council Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee were:

 Cllr John Kane (Chair)
 Cllr Felicity Wilson (Deputy Chair)
 Cllr Charles Maudling
 Cllr Gemma Dinsdale
 Cllr Linda Jones-Bulman
 Cllr Eileen Weir
 Cllr Andy Pratt
 Cllr Jeffrey Hailes
 Cllr Sam Meteer
 Cllr Jeanette Forster
 Cllr Sam Pollen

Page 54



Page 5 of 9

5
2.0 2019-2020 Highlights

2.1 Constitution changes - Planning

2.1.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee were asked by Council on 25th June 
2019 to consider the proposed changes to the Planning Section of the 
Council’s Constitution. 

2.1.2 Councillors felt that the constitution changes needed to be fully scrutinised 
by the Committee to ensure that any member’s concerns were fully 
addressed.

2.1.3 The Committee convened on 19th August 2019 for a Special Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee meeting to analyse the changes. To ensure that their 
scrutiny was fully informed the Council Chief Executive, Solicitor and the 
Planning and Place Manger attended to provide expert input into the 
discussion.

2.1.4 During the meeting it was resolved that a specific task and finish group 
should be established to scrutinise the Member’s Protocol of the proposed 
changes.

2.1.5 Outcome
As a result of the scrutiny by the Committee a number of changes were 
made to the original proposed changes:

o Ward Councillor or Town/Parish Councillors would still be able to call 
in planning applications even if they are not considered major 
planning applications in the Scheme of Delegation.

o The removal of a proposed restriction on the number of speakers in 
support or opposition on any planning application.

o All changes to the section on member’s site visits be left unchanged 
from the existing constitution.

o The creation of a General Protocol for Planning and Licensing 
members and a Protocol for Site Visits which set standards of 
attendance, training and expectation for those committees.

Page 55



Page 6 of 9

6
2.2 Constitution Changes – Overview and Scrutiny

2.2.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee reviewed the overview and scrutiny 
chapter of the constitution on 22nd August 2019. 

2.2.2 The Committee reviewed the chapter to ensure that it was easy for the 
public to understand and updated with current legislation.

2.2.3 Outcome
The Committee made a number of key changes:

o Makes clear that the Party Whip is not permitted in Committee.
o The Call-In procedure was updated to ensure that topics that are 

brought before the committee are valid.
o A requirement for members to undertake training was added to 

ensure that Scrutiny was                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

2.3 Disabled Facilities Grants

2.3.1 The Disabled Facilities Grants 2018/19 update was presented to the 
Committee in March 2020.

2.3.2 The Strategic Housing and Social Inclusion Manager presented the update 
to the Committee and presented some potential ways forward for the 
service to maintain its current excellent level of service.

2.3.4 Outcome
The Committee recommended and supported a number of changes to 
Disabled Facilities Grants as recommended by the Strategic Housing and 
Social Inclusion Manager including:

o Raising the officer’s discretionary limit from an additional £5,000 to 
£10,000 on Disabled Facilities Grants where costs are over the 
statutory £30,000 limit for an adaptation.

o Including a means test for children’s Disable Facilities Grants that 
exceed £30,000.

o Include a management charge of five percent for all Disabled 
Facilities Grants cases.

Page 56



Page 7 of 9

7
2.4 Empty Homes

2.4.1 The Empty Homes Officer presented a review of their work since their 
appointment to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 6th February 
2020.

2.4.2 The Committee were please what since the appointment of the Empty 
Homes Officer 213 empty homes have been brought back into use 
compared with 33 previously.

2.4.3 Outcome
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee supported the Empty Homes Officer 
in exploring the use of the enforced sales procedure for the worst empty 
homes cases through a possible pilot project.

3.0 Conclusion and Next Steps

3.1 The primary purpose of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee is to hold 
the Executive to account and act as a critical friend and the committee has 
fulfilled this role throughout the past year. The Committee has had a 
positive impact on the community its serves and is excited for the future.

3.2 Overview and scrutiny will be critical during the recovery from the Covid-
19 pandemic. 

3.3 The Council and its partners will be engaged in a significant amount of 
activity relating to the operational emergency response; scrutiny cannot 
second guess this response or seek to “oversee” it – partners will be 
moving fast and acting accordingly. However, scrutiny can consider how 
well partners are working together, overseeing the systems that contribute 
to smooth, and effective decision-making. 

3.4 The committee can maintain oversight on matters relating to council 
finances and act as a conduit for community experiences. To this end, the 
committee shall be hoping to engage with a wide array of the public and 
incorporate their questions and concerns into their work programme.

Page 57



Page 8 of 9

8
3.5 Covid-19 has brought about much change but this committee feel that, by 

working together with the Executive, Copeland can emerge from this crisis 
stronger and closer than before.

Scrutiny Contact Details 

James Young
Scrutiny Officer
01946 598375
Scrutiny@Copeland.gov.uk

Page 58

mailto:Scrutiny@copeland.gov.uk


Page 9 of 9

9

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
Outside Bodies Annual Report 2019-20

EXECUTIVE MEMBER: Cllr David Moore
LEAD OFFICER: Sarah Pemberton, Director of Corporate Services 

and Commercial Strategy (Monitoring Officer)
REPORT AUTHOR: James Young, Scrutiny Officer

WHY HAS THIS REPORT COME TO COUNCIL?

This report provides copies and an analysis and overview of the annual reports 
received by Council Members representing the Council on Outside Bodies 
during 2019/20.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

The Council are recommended to:

(a) Note the Outside Bodies Annual Report 2019-20.

1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 The Outside Bodies Representation List is reviewed and agreed annually 
by Full Council and identifies both Member Champions and Members on 
Outside Bodies. This report relates to representation for the 2019/20 
year.

1.2 Members formally allocated to outside body representation are 
expected to provide an annual feedback report. Each year these reports 
are considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to acknowledge 
where and how Members have been active in their Outside Bodies. 
Members use existing mechanisms, mainly linked officers, to feed any 
actions or issues into the council.

1.3 Members representing the Council on Outside Bodies have a 
responsibility to report actions, issues and risks to ensure required 

Page 61

Agenda Item 10



activity is undertaken by the Council. Any necessary concerns will then 
be addressed and any appropriate mitigating action taken. A standard 
summary feedback form template is in place for Member 
representatives to use following a meeting that can then be circulated to 
the relevant officers and Members for follow up information, 
communication and action.

2.0 FEEDBACK RECEIVED

2.1 The responses from outside body Member representatives are attached 
at Appendix A and responses from Member Champions are attached at 
Appendix B.  The feedback received includes 25 Member 
representatives, 48% of Outside Bodies on the list, and 6 Member 
Champions, 54% of Member Champions on the list. As was evidenced in 
last year’s responses, Members have been active in their Outside Bodies 
during the past year. They continue to work with officers and use 
existing mechanisms, including circulating notes and minutes of 
meetings attended to feed issues into the Council.  

2.2 As highlighted last year several Outside Bodies publish their papers 
online and are therefore available to Members and Staff to access e.g. 
Copeland Community Fund.

2.3 A number of key partnerships are reported on through the Portfolio 
reports to Full Council and using the quarterly performance 
management and reporting framework.

2.4 Six Member Champions have reported on their annual activities:  Health 
and Wellbeing, Antis-Social Behaviour, SME, Older Persons, Young 
People, Heritage and Homelessness.  This annual reporting is not 
obligatory and those received are attached at Appendix B.  

2.5 Champions also use opportunities throughout the year to report through 
standard communications mechanisms on issues and activities.  Some 
Champions take the opportunity to meet with staff and key partners 
regularly and others are active Members of projects, such as the 
Children’s Charter. All six reports highlight the value of the champion 
role to the Council and delivery of our priorities in this area.  

Page 62



2.6 The Covid-19 pandemic has significantly affected the frequency of 
meetings of Outside Bodies since March 2020 and this must be taken 
into account when viewing the responses from Members.

3.0 CONCLUSIONS

3.1 The purpose of the annual review report is to ensure Members are able 
at least once a year to reflect and report on their activity highlighting 
any issues.  It is also a mechanism for Members to be held to account; if 
Copeland Borough Council is not represented on Outside Bodies that 
they have Members allocated to it disenfranchises Copeland residents.

3.2 In summary, the annual reporting for 2019/20 has been 52%, more than 
2018/19 at 40%, but less than the nearly 60% in 2017/18 and 
significantly less than the 80% response from the previous year.

List of Appendices 

Appendix A – Outside Bodies Feedback Forms received
Appendix B – Member Champion Feedback Forms received
Appendix C – Agreed Outside Bodies List 2019/20

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Appendix A

Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20

Frequency of meetings: N/A

Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: N/A

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given:

What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20:

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17:

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well.

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs      

Name of Councillor(s): Felicity Wilson

Name of Outside Body:  Community Fund

N/A

There have been no meetings in the period that I have taken over being on the committee from 
Cllr G McGrath up until May 2020.

Page 69



Appendix A

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body    

Yes

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

Signed: F.Wilson                        Dated:         24/07/20

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.

N/A

Page 70



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20

Frequency of meetings: N/A

Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: 2

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given:

What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20:

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17:

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well.

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs      

Name of Councillor(s): Felicity Wilson

Name of Outside Body:  Safeguarding

Reviewed Personal Safety for Councillors

Agreed to issue the LGUI Safety Booklets

Discussed Safe Reporting Centres for Children in our Borough.

Reviewed the process for referring adults to Social Care

Reviewed Safeguarding Training for officers and councillors.

Page 71



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body    

Yes

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

Signed: F.Wilson                        Dated:         24/07/20

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.

Continue the work that is being done, especially following COVID-19

Page 72



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20

Frequency of meetings: Quarterly

Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: 1 (15/7/20)

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given:

What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20:

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17:

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well.

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs      

Name of Councillor(s): Gemma Dinsdale

Name of Outside Body:  WCSSG LLWR

Oversight of all things relating to LLWR.

However, I don’t know that I was on the panel so didn’t complete this. Will attend all meetings going 
forward.

*Just for clarity as I don’t want you to think I’ve purposely avoided attendance – the emails haven’t 
included calendar invites and I have been receiving over 100 emails / 2-3 days with most being 
spam. I’ve reported it to IT but been told I just had to sift through them and these have mistakenly 
ended up in a spam pile. I also wasn’t verbally told to my record that I was on the panel so haven’t 
been looking out for the invites/emails. I will rectify this going forward.

I wasn’t aware that I was on the panel until being asked to complete this form and then receiving 
a call from the organiser last week.

Page 73



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body?    

Yes

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

Signed:             Dated:      14/7/20   

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.

Official meeting invites to be sent please, if not done already.

Page 74



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20

Frequency of meetings: Quarterly

Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: 2

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given:

What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20:

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17:

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well.

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs      

Name of Councillor(s): Gemma Dinsdale

Name of Outside Body:  Police & Crime Commissioner Panel

1) Holding PCC to account.

2) Confirming PCC precept

3) Inputs into debates regarding use of Tasers by police and other agenda items

4) Representing Copeland’s needs from PCC

All agendas and minutes of meetings are held in the directors office.

Page 75



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body?    

Yes, but training/mentoring & monthly council checking needed going forward please.

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

I think if I understood better I’d have the confidence to question more – it’s very much keeping up 
appearances (which I find pointless).

Signed:             Dated:      7/7/20   

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.

As a first time/new member I didn’t receive much in the way introduction wise of do’s and don’ts 
and feel as though there are much more don’ts. They hate written queries and opinions, seems a 
bit pointless to me.

Page 76



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20

Frequency of meetings: Quarterly

Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: 1

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given:

What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20:

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17:

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well.

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs      

Name of Councillor(s): Jackie Bowman

Name of Outside Body:  West Cumbria Site Stakeholder Group (WCSSG) LLWR Working 
Group

Where appropriate and to help my understanding of LLWR I will ask questions. 

At the meetings we also get briefings from the workforce which are informative and 
interesting

Only able to attend one meeting due to clashes with other meeting commitments.

I do get the minutes, Environment reports, NDA reports and full reports with Health & 
Safety updates

Page 77



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body    

I do think that it is an important committee to be part of.

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

Signed:                         Dated:         11/06/20

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.

Page 78



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20

Frequency of meetings: N/A

Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: N/A

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given:

What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20:

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17:

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well.

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs      

Name of Councillor(s): Linda Jones-Bulman

Name of Outside Body:  LDP Committee & Elderly Person’s Champion

There have been numerous meetings with the Scrutiny Officer to establish a plan to invite service 
providers to meet and possibly between us find a gap in service provisions in which CBC may be 
able to help fill.

Sadly with the COVID-19 outbreak this endeavour has been temporarily put on hold.

Only recently been put onto the LDP Committee, with only one meeting being held since 
appointment but unable to attend due to connection problems.

Elderly Person’s Champion is a new role that has yet to fully be established.

Page 79



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body    

Yes

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

Signed: L.Jones-Bulman                         Dated:         24/07/20

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.

Establish Elderly Person’s Champion role and build on what has been started.

Page 80



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20

Frequency of meetings: 

Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: Carlisle, Wigan, and Warrington

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given:

What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20:

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17:

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well.

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs      

Name of Councillor(s): Michael McVeigh

Name of Outside Body:  Alliance

Future High Streets Funding, Towns Funds , ongoing projects with Copelands officers well in hand 
for the exciting High Streets project in Whitehaven presented for public viewing ,again Covid-19 
impacting and we can but hope with financial meltdown inevitably coming who knows what the 
future holds.

Towns fund ongoing with dedicated teams from the two towns, Millom and Cleator Moor putting 
together a comprehensive package for necessary funds to take projects forward.

Page 81



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body    

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

Signed: Michael McVeigh                         Dated:         28 May 2020

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.

Sadly the last two meetings have suffered from Covid-19 and cancelled but updated from 
secretariat who do meet with MPs and Civil servants in Westminster office. With the new 
government being formed and New Members of Parliament a new group of Member's  was being 
put together sadly our MP is unable to be part of that team with her new position as PPS for the 
Prime Minister but she has indicated who her representatives will be for information gathering. 

Page 82



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20

Frequency of meetings: 

Number of meetings attended in 2019/20:

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given:

What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20:

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17:

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well.

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs      

Name of Councillor(s): Michael McVeigh

Name of Outside Body:  Cumbria Housing Group

1. Housing Needs Survey. Ongoing putting together  every five years so as strategy can be 
evaluated for needs in planning of housing requirements, the hope is this will be 
presented to Full Council late summer, Covid-19 possible impact but the hope is it will be 
ready.

2. MHCLG, Ministry of Housing Community and Local Government funding across the County 
for new initiative's with the expectation that the Six districts and County work together 
and I can inform Council that we most certainly are with Amanda Starr leading for CBC 
with myself as Portfolio holder attending above meetings. Copeland and Allerdale working 
together in Rough Sleepers and provision in cases of Homelessness, ongoing but well 
covered.

3. Disabled Facilities Grants all well under control and on track, in that referral's come via 
Cumbria County Council bit of a slow down with Covid-19 but nothing of major concern 
fortunately. 

4. Empty homes ongoing exercise and work in progress.

Page 83



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body    

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

Signed: Michael McVeigh                         Dated:       28 May 2020  

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.

I would like to thank Amanda Starr and her team for the great work they do. Along with Councillor 
Sam Pollen as the Homeless champion, we see first hand just how professional and accomplished 
the team is.

Page 84



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20

Frequency of meetings: 4 Board 1 strategic away day 1Small grants Panel

Number of meetings attended in 2019/20:6

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given:

What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20:

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17:

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well.

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs      

Name of Councillor(s):David Moore

Name of Outside Body: Copeland Community Fund 

As a board  member I have been involved all decisions  made and setting the themes to be 
supported. I am also working as executive member on the new cooperation agreement between 
Copeland, County and NDA.

Copeland Community Fund board comprises of representatives from CBC, CCC, 
LLWR , NDA and independent members. The fund and team have benefitted 
substantially from the management and leadership of Julie Betteridge, who left 
Copeland Borough Council March 2020, but has led the team and advised the 
Board of Copeland Community Fund since it’s inception nearly 10 years ago.
 
Copeland Community Fund continues to support community groups to develop 
and deliver sustainable projects across Copeland. In 2019/20 Copeland 
Community Fund commissioned Cumbria CVS to provide one to one governance 
support to community organisations. Three organisations received this one to one 
support including: refining roles & responsibilities, reviewing policies & procedures, 
to registering as a CIO or charity. This work has a real positive impact on the way 
groups operate, it can provide step change and is extremely valued.
 
During 2019-20 Copeland Community Fund committed over £1,908,000 
leveraging nearly £1,386,000 in match funding to the Borough. The Fund has 
provided 2 Annual Endowments and committed grants to 22 new projects: 3 
Enabling Grants, 8 Small / Local Communities grants and 11 large grants (3 Work 
& Skills Projects; 3 Health & Wellbeing Projects; 4 Youth Projects; 1 Community 
Infrastructure & Environment Project).
 
CCF also committed £10,500 through the Enabling Fund in addition to the 
Enabling Fund grants, which are provided to finance specific areas of project 
developments over and above the support provided from the Community 
Development officers and external partners. For example the Enabling Fund also 
commissioned Cumbria CVS to deliver West Cumbria Funding Fair, 1:1 
governance support (5 organisations) and Copeland Governance Academy. ACT 
was commissioned to provide 1:1 governance to one organisation. In addition to a 
new CCF coordinated initiative “Meet The Funders” – a series of informal 
networking workshops with a range of funders and infrastructure organisations. 
Community Development – the development support provided by the Community 
Development Officers continues to be a valued element of Copeland Community 
Fund’s innovative support to community organisations. The CCF Evaluation 2014 - 
2019 Interim Report noted that funded groups found communication and support 
from CCF very helpful during the project development and application processes 
emphasising the essential tailored support on offer.
 

Page 85



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body  YES  

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: Board Member

Signed:                         Dated: 22/06/20        

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.

Cooperation agreement 

Page 86



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20

Frequency of meetings: One the AGM

Number of meetings attended in 2019/20:0

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given:

What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20:

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17:

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well.

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs      

Name of Councillor(s):David Moore

Name of Outside Body :North West Employers  

I have been correspondence with this organisation to facilitate a meeting with myself and our HR 
and Democratic services manager to see what extra support and training we can get in for our 
members. I will pick this up again when guidance allows for meetings and training.

Our HR team meet regularly with North West employers most of the engagement is at officer 
level they provide support and advice. Are use has increased to weekly briefings to assist the 
Council through these unprecedented times.

Page 87



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body  YES  

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

Signed:                         Dated: 22/06/20        

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.

Member training

Page 88



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20

Frequency of meetings: Four per year 

Number of meetings attended in 2019/20:3

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given:

What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20:

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17:

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well.

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs      

Name of Councillor(s):David Moore

Name of Outside Body: NuLeaf 

NuLeaf advises local authority’s on all aspects of nuclear legacy waste, I have input on all aspects 
of their work as these are relevant to the waste stored in Copeland and materials that may come 
to Copeland in the future. They are also assisting interested local authority’s with GDF.    

NuLeaf advises local authorities on all aspects of nuclear legacy, I have circulated to all members 
the monthly update newsletter.  

Page 89



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body  YES  

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: I am currently the 
Vice Chair

Signed:                         Dated: 22/06/20

        

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.

All aspects of their work continue over a long time scale.

Page 90



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20

Frequency of meetings: bi annually

Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: 1

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given:

What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20:

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17:

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well.

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs      

Name of Councillor(s): Russell Studholme 

Name of Outside Body:  WCSSG Spent fuel management and Nuclear materials

WCSSG

This body looks after the management of spent fuel still stored on the Sellafield site. 
Unfortunately due to work commitments as was only able to attend one meeting this year, in this 
meeting a presentation was given by Sellafield ltd on the reprocessing of remaining fuel left in the 
storage pound and this fuel was destined for Magnox reprocessing. Oxide reprocessing has ended 
due to all oxide fuel been proceeded. Magnox fuel reprocessing will continue to to all the 
remaining fuel in the storage ponds has gone.

A presentation was given by SIXEP on the planned construction of a new plant as the exist plant is 
end off life. Having deep understanding of the fuel cycle and reprocessing I enquired why the 
plant was end of life, to be told the plant was operational but was full of waste resin beds 
therefore no storage. I challenge this as the waste resin can be back washed to remove 
contamination and reused. They agreed with the challenge but seem set on a new plant.

I think this option is a complete waste of money because it is just the easy option and not the 
most economical and environmental friendly.

The final item was to invite the MOD to the next meeting to discuss the status of the fuel they 
have stored in the storage ponds.

Unfortunately I was unable to attend this meeting

Page 91



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body    

The Council should continue to have representation as the man agent of this material 
Is key to the operations of Sellafield

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

I would like to be able to position myself as deputy chair on this committee as It Is a 
subject that needs through scrutiny that It Is being managed efficiently.

Signed:                         Dated:         

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.

I think the plan to build a new SIXEP plant should be challenged and other option investigated.

The amount of MOD fuel and management of it should be reviewed to get an understand of it 
future management.

Page 92



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20

Frequency of meetings: twice yearly

Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: 1

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given:

What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20:

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17:

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well.

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs      

Name of Councillor(s): Russell Studholme

Russell Name of Outside Body:  WCSSG Environmental health

Having an extensive career working on the Sellafield site I have a deep understanding of the 
reports presented and the presentation given.

Both report showed the radioactive dose received by members of the public from work undertaken 
on the Sellafield site are still well below international guidelines and consistent with previous report 
since 2014. The Environment report also stated the perimeter boreholes around the site show no 
changes from previous years therefore no significant levels of activity have reached the site 
perimeter.

 The third item discussed was the breach of containment of one of the waste magnox scarf silos,

One silo is losing approx one meter cube of water per day, the silo is continually having to be 
topped up with water to keep the waste under water.

The perimeter around the silo is penetrated with a series of borehole from which sample of ground 
water are sample and analysed for radio isotopes, as yet no significant increase in level have been 
detected.

Work is ongoing to plug the leak.

There were three main items discussed this year and these were the presentation of the 
presentation of the radioactivity is food and the environment 2018 report, secondly the 
monitoring our environment report 2018 and thirdly a presentation on the leak from the magnox 
waste award silo.

Page 93



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body    

The Council should continue with representation on this outside body as monitoring 
and safe operation of Sellafield Is critical to the safety and well being of the local 
communities.

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

I have being asked to stand as deputy chair of this outside body going forward upon 
other members agreement.

Signed: Submitted by email                         Dated:         3 May 2020

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.

The major issue to be carried forward is the breach in the silo containment and associated ground 
water monitoring program.

Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings: Quarterly    
 
Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: 4  

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20: 
 
 

 

 

 

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17: 

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well. 

 

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs        

 

Name of Councillor(s): Elected Mayor Mike Starkie    

Name of Outside Body:   BEC Board   

Purpose of the board to oversee the BEC property portfolio and drive growth plans for 
Copeland and Allerdale  

 

Projects focussed on in 2019/20 include the Buzz station, North Shore Regenerations 
scheme and future High Streets Fund Bid  

Executive Reports to Full council Meeting  

Member Briefings and Member Weekly updates ad hoc communications when required  

Page 101



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21? 

         

 

 

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body    Yes  

 

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Signed:             Dated:     04/05/2020     

            

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.         
          

 

Page 102



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings: Bi Monthly    
 
Number of meetings attended in 2019/20:4  

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20: 
 
 

 

 

 

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17: 

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well. 

 

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs        

 

Name of Councillor(s): Elected Mayor Mike Starkie    

Name of Outside Body:   Copeland Community Fund  

Linking in with the councils social inclusion agenda 

The Role of the Copeland Community Fund Board is to contribute to the decision making 
process for large grant requests in line with the socio economic guidelines  

Page 103



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21? 

         

 

 

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body    YES  

 

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Signed:                   Dated: 04/05/2020          

            

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.         
          

 

Page 104



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings:  Arranged as Required   
Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: None 

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20: 
 
 

 

 

 

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17: 

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well. 

 

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs        

 

Name of Councillor(s): Elected Mayor Mike Starkie    

Name of Outside Body:   Copeland Partnership  

There were no key outcomes during 2019/20 as no meetings were held during the year. 

 

The partnership is a Copeland wide structure that enables the Council to hold the 
Copeland Sustainable Communities Strategy with public, private and third sectors.  
Capacity issues has meant that the Partnership has moved from meeting on a cyclical 
basis to meeting against key agenda items and no meeting was held in 2019/20. 

Page 105



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21? 

         

 

 

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body     

The Council should continue to hold the framework structure, although may wish to 
consider how it can use as an annual meeting for key issues under themes, such as social 
inclusion. 

 

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Signed:                             Dated:  04/05/2020        

            

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.         
          

This would be a good structure to use to take forward the Social Inclusion agenda and 
Economic Vision, particularly to support post-Covid-19 recovery. 

 

Page 106



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings:  Quarterly   
 
Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: 3 

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20: 
 
 

 

 

 

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17: 

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well. 

 

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs        

 

Name of Councillor(s): Elected Mayor Mike Starkie    

Name of Outside Body:   Cumbria Leadership Board   

Representation on the Board includes all Cumbrian Leaders. LDNP, Police and Crime 
Commissioner and CCG Group representatives also attend  

County wide issues reported and discussed  

The future of Local Government  

Syrian Resettlement programme  

Local Industrial Strategy  

Brexit discussions and preperations  

Information, decisions and discussions papers regularly communicated through member and 
officer briefings and e-mails.  Communications via Members weekly update and included in 
regular portfolio reports to council  

Page 107



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21? 

         

 

 

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body     

Yes this Board is a strong voice for the whole of the Borough  

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Signed:                            Dated: 05/05/2020        

            

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.         
          

Joint Working within the County is vital at this current time  

Page 108



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings:  Bi-Monthly   
 
Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: 5  

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20: 
 
 

 

 

 

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17: 

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well. 

 

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs        

 

Name of Councillor(s): Elected Mayor Mike Starkie    

Name of Outside Body:   Cumbria LEP Board 

 Northern Powerhouse  

 Growth Deal  

 Local industrial strategy – working to and recognising the importance of attracting people to 
live, work and invest in the region  

 Carlisle Lake district Airport  

 Cumbrian Coast Line Upgrade Investment  

 Town Deals – working together to support their development  

  Supporting the Cumbria Housing Strategy  

Through Executive Report to Council.  Member briefings/member updates  

Page 109



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21? 

         

 

 

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body    Yes 

 

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Signed:                             Dated:  05/05/2020        

            

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.         
          

Representation of the LEP Board for the North West  will be held by Copeland for 20/21 and 
passed to Allerdale in 2021/22 

Regular telephone call s are held with Allerdale prior to the meetings to guage their views on the 
agenda items up for discussion  

Page 110



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings:  Quarterly   
 
Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: 3 

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20: 
 
 

 

 

 

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17: 

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well. 

 

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs        

 

Name of Councillor(s): Elected Mayor Mike Starkie    

Name of Outside Body:   Joint Districts Leaders Board  

Cumbria Wide issues are reported and discussed.  Representation on this board includes all 
Cumbrian Local Authority Leaders and Chief Executives.  The Police and Crime Commissioners 
Office and the Cumbrian Clinical Commissioning Group are also represented.   

Issues discussed and debated include:- 

 The Future of Local Government  

 Health and Well Being  

 

Regularly reported through the Executive Report for Council.  Information circulated and included 
Member and Officer Briefings/e-mails   

 

Page 111



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21? 

         

 

 

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body     

Yes 

 

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Signed:                          Dated:         04/05/2020 

            
  

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.         
          

 

Page 112



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings:  There has been no meetings of this group this year   
 
Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: 0 

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20: 
 
 

 

 

 

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17: 

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well. 

 

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs        

 

Name of Councillor(s): Elected Mayor Mike Starkie    

Name of Outside Body:   West Cumberland Hospital Stakeholder Group  

The main purpose of this meeting was to oversee and keep informed of phase 1 the hospital 
development.  There have been no meetings this municipal year  

It would be expected that further meetings will possibly take place if and when more development 
takes place   

 

NHS activities are regularly reported via comms and through member briefings  

Page 113



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21? 

         

 

 

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body     

Yes as and when appropriate  

 

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Signed:                            Dated:    5th May 2020      

            

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.         
          

 

Page 114



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings:    
 
Number of meetings attended in 2019/20:  

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20: 
 
 

 

 

 

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17: 

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well. 

 

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs        

 

Name of Councillor(s): Elected Mayor Mike Starkie    

Name of Outside Body:   West Cumbria Site Stakeholder Group  

Allows elected members and community partners to scrutinise SL, LLWR and the NDA  

Links the community with the whole nuclear industry and nuclear agenda  

Regular reports via Council Executive Report   

Updates provided through members briefings  

Page 115



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21? 

         

 

 

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body     

Yes. Essential  

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Signed:                             Dated:        04/05/20  

            

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.         
          

 

Page 116



Appendix B

Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20

Frequency of meetings: N/A

Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: N/A

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given:

What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20:

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17:

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well.

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs      

Name of Councillor(s): Carl Walmsley

Name of Outside Body:  Health & Wellbeing Champion

I use my role regularly to get heath and wellbeing related messages out to the public via our 
comma team, local media and my own page Mirehouse Matters 

I believe I have done plenty already using my champion role with my mental health work, links to 
autism (Running a free sensory room) raising much needed awareness in all related fields. I am 
still only finding my feet after the first 12 months and really looking forward to being in a position 
to help more including working alongside other champions. 

No actual meetings in person but I get minutes sent from all local heath groups, committees and 
Well Whitehaven 

0 meetings apart from my own weekly Mind ya marras etc 

Page 117



Appendix B

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body?  

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

In my opinion it’s a must this role continues to have a council member in fact due to everything that 
falls into Health and wellbeing I feel we could have two members representing the role 

Signed: C.Walmsley                         Dated:        15/07/20 

I believe these champion roles are a fantastic way to actually get involved with the Copeland 
residents and show people first hand of the good work the CBC do.

Page 118



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20

Frequency of meetings: As and when required. (Please Refer to my comments on page 2.) 

Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: 1 formal.

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given:

What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20:

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17:

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well.

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs      

Name of Councillor(s): Doug Wilson

Name of Outside Body:  Small and Medium Enterprises (Champion)

I attended an event which was organised by our local MP. Local businesses were invited to meet 
Business leaders and advisers from the Department of International Trade (DIT) who discussed 
the importance of exporting, how to do it, areas to target and the opportunities on offer.

The meeting was part of the Government’s ‘Exporting is GREAT’ campaign to encourage local 
businesses to take advantage of the global appetite for West Cumbria’s products, skills and 
expertise.

Speakers included DIT advisers, Ivan Baldwin, chairman of Britain’s Energy Coast Business Cluster, 
Export champion Peter Thompson, finance representatives, DIT nuclear specialist Michael Lindsay 
and Rob Johnson, of Cumbria Chamber of Commerce. 

Since the onset of the Covid 19 pandemic the focus has been on assisting and advising particularly 
the smaller businesses on the routes for grant claims and the assistance that Copeland BC has 
been providing during these testing times. My interaction with these organisations has enabled 
me to appreciate the difficulties they are experiencing.  This is particularly impacting upon 
hospitality, retail and personal services where close contact cannot be avoided.  

The feed-back I have received from some of these companies has been particularly heartening, as 
their comments in relation to Copeland’s staff and the help they have given has been particularly 
complimentary.

My main interaction with SMEs has been at a personal level where I have been able to assist in 
resolving problems and queries that arise that are Copeland related. I can relate to these 
businesses as my career has brought me into close contact with a wide variety and types of 
businesses. I have attended 1 formal meeting.

Page 119



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body. 

Yes.  In my opinion, the role is I believe a useful and creative opportunity, providing the role 
continues to receive support from the council.  

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

The concept for the role is evidently warranted but I believe that its purpose and desired outcomes 
need it to be clearly defined and adequately resourced.

Signed: Dated: 21st June 2020        

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.

It is evident that the pandemic will be still at the forefront of our minds as we progress into the 
year. I would hope and expect that government through the local authorities will release 
initiatives and incentives to regenerate growth. 

I would wish to have more involvement with growth initiatives as the materialise and hopefully 
see more drive and leadership from Cumbria LEP. 

Page 120



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20

Frequency of meetings: Every month, different bodies.

Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: Six.

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given:

What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20:

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17:

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well.

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs      

Name of Councillor(s): Jeffrey Hailes

Name of Outside Body:  Young Peoples Champion

Well received by groups as the role Is dependent on what you are prepared to put In!
This champion role Is rewarding and  down to the holder to make contact with many bodies and 
groups.

Page 121



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body    

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

Signed: Submitted by email                         Dated:         1 May 2020

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.

I find It rewarding and need  to continue. It would be of great advantage to me for CBC to have a 
supportive plan of work and attendances for me to undertake rather than looking for you’re your 
own work.

Page 122



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20

Frequency of meetings: N/A

Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: N/A

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given:

What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20:

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17:

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well.

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs      

Name of Councillor(s): Linda Jones-Bulman

Name of Outside Body:  LDP Committee & Elderly Person’s Champion

There have been numerous meetings with the Scrutiny Officer to establish a plan to invite service 
providers to meet and possibly between us find a gap in service provisions in which CBC may be 
able to help fill.

Sadly with the COVID-19 outbreak this endeavour has been temporarily put on hold.

Only recently been put onto the LDP Committee, with only one meeting being held since 
appointment but unable to attend due to connection problems.

Elderly Person’s Champion is a new role that has yet to fully be established.

Page 123



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body    

Yes

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

Signed: L.Jones-Bulman                         Dated:         24/07/20

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.

Establish Elderly Person’s Champion role and build on what has been started.

Page 124



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20

Frequency of meetings: N/A

Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: N/A

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given:

What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20:

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17:

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well.

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs      

Name of Councillor(s): Sam Pollen

Name of Outside Body:  Homelessness Champion

The role continues to raise awareness of homelessness issues and highlights the outstanding work 
that our officers and partner organisations do for the most vulnerable people in our community.

Reported back internally through Overview & Scrutiny and Full Council with the support and 
assistance of officers.
Reported externally through other public meetings.

Page 125



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body    

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

Signed: Submitted by email                         Dated:         6 May 2020

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.

Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



OUTSIDE BODIES 2019/20 Council 210519 Item 6 Appendix D

Portfolio Representation

 Outside Body / 
Partnership

Attending Officer Member representative Corporate
Strategy 
Alignment

1 Copeland Community 
Fund

Executive 
Director 

Elected Mayor 
Substitute:  Portfolio Holder (Inclusive Communities)

Deputy Mayor 
Substitute:  Portfolio Holder (Commercial 
Development)

All Ambitions

2 Greenwich Leisure 
Limited Board - 
Copeland

Executive 
Director 

Portfolio Holder (Inclusive Communities)
Councillor Brian O’Kane

Ambition 3

3 Copeland Partnership Executive 
Director 

Elected Mayor 
Deputy Mayor 

All Ambitions

4 West Cumbria
Community Safety 
Partnership

Executive 
Director

Portfolio Holder (Inclusive Communities) Ambition 1, 3 and 4

5 Cumbria LEP
Partnership Board

None Elected Mayor (West Cumbria representative shared on 
2-year cycle with Allerdale Borough Council)

All Ambitions

6 Cumbria Leadership 
Board

None Elected Mayor
Sub:  Deputy Mayor

All Ambitions

7 Joint District Leaders 
Board

Chief Executive Elected Mayor
Sub:  Deputy Mayor 

All Ambitions

P
age 133



8 Cumbria Housing 
Group

Executive 
Director / 
Strategic Housing 
and Inclusion 
Manager

Portfolio Holder for Environment and Place All Ambitions

9 West Cumberland 
Hospital Stakeholder 
Group

None Elected Mayor
Sub:  Portfolio Holder (Inclusive Communities)

Ambition 1 and 3

10 Cumbria Public Health 
Alliance 

Executive 
Director 

Portfolio Holder (Inclusive Communities) All Ambitions

11 Cumbria Strategic 
Waste Partnership

Executive 
Director / 
Community 
Services Manager

Portfolio Holder (Commercial Development) All Ambitions

12 Connecting Cumbria None Portfolio Holder (Commercial Development) All ambitions

13 Pensions Forum Chief Finance 
Officer

Elected Mayor Ambition 4 

14 Cumbria Community 
Foundation Board

None Deputy Mayor Ambition 1 and 3

15 BEC Chief Executive Elected Mayor Ambition 1

16 North West Employers Portfolio Holder Ambition 2 and 4

17 NULEAF Portfolio Holder (Nuclear and Corporate Services) Ambition 1

P
age 134



18 The Alliance As Requested Portfolio Holder (Environment and Place) Ambition 1,2 and 3 

19 West Cumbria 
Community Safety 
Partnership

Chief Executive Portfolio Holder
(Inclusive Communities)

Ambition 1,3 and 4 

20 West Cumbria Site 
Stakeholder Group 
(WCSSG)

Chief Executive Elected Mayor 
Councillor Fee Wilson
Councillor Mike McVeigh

21 Voluntary and 
Community Sector 
Liaison Champion 

Executive 
Director

Portfolio Holder (Inclusive Communities) All Ambitions

Member Representation

22 Howgate and 
Distington Partnership

All in Partnership area

23 NE Copeland - NE 
Locality Partnership

All in Partnership area

24 West Locality 
Partnership

All in Partnership area

25 Mid Copeland 
Partnership

All in Partnership area

26 Whitehaven 
Partnership

All in Partnership area

27 South Copeland 
Partnership

All in Partnership area

28 3 Tier Quarterly 
Meetings

Executive 
Director 

Open to all members to attend as agenda dictates All Ambitions

P
age 135



29 WCSSG 
LLWR
Working group

None Councillor Jackie Bowman
Councillor Andy Pratt 
Councillor Gemma Dinsdale

Ambition 1 and 3

30 WCSSG
Spent Fuel 
Management and 
Nuclear Materials 
Working Group

None Councillor Russell Studholme
Councillor John Kane
Independent Councillor TBC

Ambition 1 and 3

31 WCSSG
Risk and Hazard 
Reduction and Waste 
Management Working 
Group

None Councillor Fee Wilson
Councillor Dave Banks
Councillor Sean Cullen

Ambition 1 and 3

32 WCSSG
Environmental Health
Working Group

None Councillor Russell Studholme
Councillor Tom Higgins

Ambition 1 and 3

33 WCSSG
Emergency Planning
Working Group

None Councillor Andy Pratt
Councillor Graham Calvin

Ambition 1 and 3

34 Cumbria Community 
Foundation – West 
Cumbria Grants Panel

None Councillor John Kane
Councillor Fee Wilson

Ambition 1 and 3

35 West Cumbria 
Cycleway Partnership

Strategic Planning 
Manager

Councillor Peter Tyson Ambition 1 and 3

36 Cumbria Health & 
Wellbeing Scrutiny 
Committee

 None Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee or Nominee All Ambitions

37 Lake District National 
Parks Authority

None Councillor Hugh Branney Ambition 3 and 4

P
age 136



38 LEP Scrutiny Chairman of Overview and Scrutiny Committee Ambitions 1 and 3

39 LDNP Partnership Economic 
Development 
Manager

Councillor Linda Jones-Bulman Ambition 1, 3 and 4

40 PCC Panel None Councillor Gemma Dinsdale Ambition 1, 3 and 4

41 Cumbria Local Nature 
Partnership

Councillor Hugh Branney Ambition 1 and 3

42 Armed Forces 
Champion

Councillor Allan Forster Ambition 3

43 Conservation 
Champion

Councillor Graham Calvin All Ambitions

44 Equalities Champion Councillor Jeanette Forster All Ambitions

45 Safeguarding 
Champion

Councillor Fee Wilson All Ambitions

46 Homeless Champion Councillor Sam Pollen Ambition 1, 3 and 4

47 ASB Champion Councillor Eileen Weir Ambition 1, 3 and 4

48 Young People’s 
Champion

Councillor Jeffrey Hailes All Ambitions

49 Older Person’s 
Champion

Councillor Linda Jones-Bulman All Ambitions

50 SME Champion Councillor Doug Wilson Ambition 1, 2 and 4

51 Democracy and 
Engagement Champion

Councillor Andy Pratt Ambition 3 and 4

52 Health and Wellbeing 
Champion

Councillor Carl Walmsley All Ambitions

P
age 137



Local Trusts managed by the Council

53 Whitehaven Maternity 
Trust

Councillor Eileen Weir
Councillor Jeanette Forster
Councillor Charles Maudling 

Ambition 3

54 Pipers Educational 
Trust

Councillor Brian O’Kane Ambition 3

P
age 138



Council 22 September 2020

Appointments to Outside Bodies 2020-2021

EXECUTIVE MEMBER: Mike Starkie, Directly Elected Mayor.
LEAD OFFICER: Sarah Pemberton, Director of Corporate Services 

and Commercial Strategy (Monitoring Officer).
REPORT AUTHOR: Stephanie Shaw, Electoral & Democratic Services 

Manager 

SUMMARY:
Due to the changes made to the Executive in July 2020, amendments to the 
schedule of outside bodies appointments are required to reflect the new 
portfolios.

RECOMMENDATIONS:                                                                              

Council is recommended to :- 
a)  agree the amendments to the Representations to the Greenwich Leisure 
Limited Board and West Cumbria Stakeholder Group; and
b) note the consequential changes to the portfolio titles.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 Council agreed the current appointments to outside bodies on 21st 
May 2020.

1.2 Following the recent changes to the Executive, changes are required 
to the representatives appointed to two outside bodies to realign 
with the new portfolio holders along with some other consequential 
changes.

Page 139

Agenda Item 11



2.0  Proposal

2.1 Representation on Greenwich Leisure Limited Board to be changed 
from the Portfolio Holder for Inclusive Communities to the Portfolio 
Holder for Commercial Services.

2.2 Representation on West Cumbria Hospital Stakeholder Group to be 
changed from the Elected Mayor to the Portfolio Holder for 
Commercial Services.

2.3 A number of consequential changes are needed to reflect the new 
portfolio’s, these are for noting purposes only, as there is no change 
to the representative already appointed.

2.4 The consequential changes are:

2.4.1 Any reference to Portfolio Holder for Inclusive Communities be 
amended to Portfolio Holder for Environment, Place and Inclusive 
Communities.

2.4.2 Any reference to Portfolio Holder for Environment and Place be 
amended to Portfolio Holder for Environment, Place and Inclusive 
Communities.

2.4.3 Any Reference to Portfolio Holder for Commercial Development 
be amended to Portfolio Holder for Commercial Services.

3.0 Conclusion

3.1 Council is asked to agree the changes to the representatives on the 
two outside bodies detailed in paragaraph 2.1 and 2.2 above and 
note the consequential changes to the porfolio’s as detailed in 
paragraph 2.4.

3.2 The appointments will be effective immediately until their expiry in 
May 2021, when all the representatives on outside bodies will 
undergo their annual review.

3.3     All changes are shown on the schedule attached at appendix A.   

Page 140



4.     STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS 

4.1 Legal Comments are:  No legal issues arise from this report.

4.2 The Monitoring Officer’s comments are: Contained in report.

4.3 The Section 151 Officer’s comments are: No financial issues arise 
from this report.

4.4 EIA Comments: The Council works within its agreed Equality Scheme.

List of Appendices 

Appendix A – Schedule of Outside Bodies

Page 141



This page is intentionally left blank



OUTSIDE BODIES 2020/21 (amended September 2020)                            Appendix A

Portfolio Representation

 Outside Body / 
Partnership

Attending Officer Member representative Corporate
Strategy 
Alignment

1 Copeland Community 
Fund

Executive 
Director 

Elected Mayor 
Substitute:  Portfolio Holder for Inclusive Communities  
Environment, Place and Inclusive Communities 

Deputy Mayor 
Substitute:  Portfolio Holder for  Commercial 
Development Services)

All Ambitions

2 Greenwich Leisure 
Limited Board - 
Copeland

Executive 
Director 

Portfolio Holder for Inclusive Communities
Portfolio Holder for Commercial Services

Councillor Jeffrey Hailes

Ambition 3

3 Copeland Partnership Executive 
Director 

Elected Mayor 
Deputy Mayor 

All Ambitions

4 West Cumbria
Community Safety 
Partnership

Executive 
Director

Portfolio Holder for Inclusive Communities)
Environment, Place and Inclusive Communities

Ambition 1, 3 and 4

5 Cumbria LEP
Partnership Board

None Elected Mayor (West Cumbria representative shared on 
2-year cycle with Allerdale Borough Council)

All Ambitions

6 Cumbria Leadership 
Board

None Elected Mayor
Sub:  Deputy Mayor

All Ambitions

P
age 143



7 Joint District Leaders 
Board

Chief Executive Elected Mayor
Sub:  Deputy Mayor 

All Ambitions

8 Cumbria Housing 
Group

Executive 
Director / 
Strategic Housing 
and Inclusion 
Manager

Portfolio Holder for Environment and Place  
Environment, Place and Inclusive Communities

All Ambitions

9 West Cumberland 
Hospital Stakeholder 
Group

None Elected Mayor Portfolio Holder for Commercial Services 
Sub:  Portfolio Holder (Inclusive Communities) 
Environment, Place and Inclusive Communities

Ambition 1 and 3

10 Cumbria Public Health 
Alliance 

Executive 
Director 

Portfolio Holder (Inclusive Communities)
Environment, Place and Inclusive Communities

All Ambitions

11 Cumbria Strategic 
Waste Partnership

Executive 
Director / 
Community 
Services Manager

Portfolio Holder (Commercial Development Services) All Ambitions

12 Pensions Forum Chief Finance 
Officer

Elected Mayor Ambition 4 

13 Cumbria Community 
Foundation Board

None Deputy Mayor Ambition 1 and 3

14 BEC Chief Executive Elected Mayor Ambition 1

15 North West Employers Portfolio Holder Ambition 2 and 4

16 NULEAF Portfolio Holder (Nuclear and Corporate Services) Ambition 1

P
age 144



17 The Alliance As Requested Portfolio Holder (Environment and Place)
Environment, Place and Inclusive Communities

Ambition 1,2 and 3 

18 West Cumbria 
Community Safety 
Partnership

Chief Executive Portfolio Holder
(Inclusive Communities)
Environment, Place and Inclusive Communities

Ambition 1,3 and 4 

19 West Cumbria Site 
Stakeholder Group 
(WCSSG)

Chief Executive Elected Mayor 
Councillor Fee Wilson
Councillor Mike McVeigh

20 Voluntary and 
Community Sector 
Liaison Champion 

Executive 
Director

Portfolio Holder (Inclusive Communities)
Environment, Place and Inclusive Communities

All Ambitions

Member Representation

21 Howgate and 
Distington Partnership

All in Partnership area

22 NE Copeland - NE 
Locality Partnership

All in Partnership area

23 West Locality 
Partnership

All in Partnership area

24 Mid Copeland 
Partnership

All in Partnership area

25 Whitehaven 
Partnership

All in Partnership area

26 South Copeland 
Partnership

All in Partnership area

P
age 145



27 3 Tier Quarterly 
Meetings

Executive 
Director 

Open to all members to attend as agenda dictates All Ambitions

28 WCSSG 
LLWR
Working group

None Councillor Jackie Bowman
Councillor Andy Pratt 
Councillor Gemma Dinsdale

Ambition 1 and 3

29 WCSSG
Spent Fuel 
Management and 
Nuclear Materials 
Working Group

None Councillor Russell Studholme
Councillor John Kane
Councillor Steve Morgan

Ambition 1 and 3

30 WCSSG
Risk and Hazard 
Reduction and Waste 
Management Working 
Group

None Councillor Fee Wilson
Councillor Dave Banks
Councillor Gynneth Everett

Ambition 1 and 3

31 WCSSG
Environmental Health
Working Group

None Councillor Russell Studholme
Councillor Tom Higgins

Ambition 1 and 3

32 WCSSG
Emergency Planning
Working Group

None Councillor Andy Pratt
Councillor Graham Calvin

Ambition 1 and 3

33 Cumbria Community 
Foundation – West 
Cumbria Grants Panel

None Councillor John Kane
Councillor Fee Wilson

Ambition 1 and 3

34 West Cumbria 
Cycleway Partnership

Strategic Planning 
Manager

Councillor Peter Tyson Ambition 1 and 3

35 Cumbria Health & 
Wellbeing Scrutiny 
Committee

 None Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee or Nominee All Ambitions

P
age 146



36 Lake District National 
Parks Authority

None Councillor Hugh Branney Ambition 3 and 4

37 LEP Scrutiny Chairman of Overview and Scrutiny Committee Ambitions 1 and 3

38 LDNP Partnership Economic 
Development 
Manager

Councillor Linda Jones-Bulman Ambition 1, 3 and 4

39 PCC Panel None Councillor Gemma Dinsdale Ambition 1, 3 and 4

40 Cumbria Local Nature 
Partnership

Councillor Hugh Branney Ambition 1 and 3

41 Armed Forces 
Champion

Councillor Allan Forster Ambition 3

42 Conservation 
Champion

Councillor Graham Calvin All Ambitions

43 Equalities Champion Councillor Jeanette Forster All Ambitions

44 Safeguarding 
Champion

Councillor Fee Wilson All Ambitions

45 Homeless Champion Councillor Sam Pollen Ambition 1, 3 and 4

46 ASB Champion Councillor Eileen Weir Ambition 1, 3 and 4

47 Young People’s 
Champion

Councillor Jeffrey Hailes All Ambitions

48 Older Person’s 
Champion

Councillor Linda Jones-Bulman All Ambitions

49 SME Champion Councillor Doug Wilson Ambition 1, 2 and 4

P
age 147



50 Democracy and 
Engagement Champion

Councillor Andy Pratt Ambition 3 and 4

51 Health and Wellbeing 
Champion

Councillor Carl Walmsley All Ambitions

P
age 148



Local Trusts managed by the Council

52 Whitehaven Maternity 
Trust

Councillor Eileen Weir
Councillor Jeanette Forster
Councillor Charles Maudling 

Ambition 3

53 Pipers Educational 
Trust

Councillor Brian O’Kane Ambition 3

P
age 149



T
his page is intentionally left blank



FULL COUNCIL 220920 

UPDATE ON COPELAND BOROUGH COUNCIL’S TOWN CENTRES PROGRAMME – THE 
GOVERNMENT’S FUTURE HIGH STREETS FUND OPPORTUNITY FOR WHITEHAVEN AND 
TOWNS FUND OPPORTUNITES FOR CLEATOR MOOR AND MILLOM

LEAD MEMBER: Mayor Mike Starkie
LEAD OFFICER: Pat Graham, Chief Executive
REPORT AUTHOR: Sarah Mitchell, Economic Development Manager

WHAT BENEFITS WILL THESE PROPOSALS BRING TO COPELAND RESIDENTS?

Through the Corporate Strategy, Copeland growth priorities and the Economic 
Development Service Plan, the Council has agreed several projects and objectives to 
bring forward regeneration and growth in the Borough, including pursuing funding 
opportunities for investment in the towns.  As part of the Governments agenda to level 
up the country – creating jobs and building stronger and more resilient local economies 
and communities – funding opportunities through Future High Streets Fund and the 
Towns Fund are potentially available to Copeland for investment in three of its towns.  

The benefit to Copeland residents is the potential for significant funding into 
Whitehaven, Cleator Moor and Millom through Government, with support from public 
and private sector partners.  The regeneration of our town centres will bring improved 
economic prosperity with a knock-on increase in jobs, new businesses and visitors to the 
area.  

WHY HAS THIS REPORT COME TO FULL COUNCIL?
(e.g. Key Decision, Policy recommendation for Full Council, at request of Council, etc.)

The report presents an overview of current funding opportunities within the Towns 
Programme that are being pursued by the Economic Development team and the Council 
are asked to agree to accept external funding against current funding applications to 
enable immediate spend to meet deadlines should grant offers be forthcoming.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

The Council are requested to:
a) Subject to (a) the applications being successful and (b) the Chief Executive in 

consultation with the Elected Mayor and Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
being satisfied with any grant conditions imposed that the proposed receipt of up to 
£24,000,000 against current applications to both the Ministry for Housing, 
Communities and Local Government and Sellafield Ltd Social Impact Fund to invest in 
our towns be approved with spend then being dealt with in accordance with 
schemes submitted and in accordance with contract standing orders and financial 
regulations and otherwise in accordance with the Council’s constitution; and

Page 151

Agenda Item 12



b) the composition of the Cleator Moor and Millom Town Deal Boards as required by 
the Towns Funds programme be noted and that Council confirms that the Copeland 
Borough Council Board member on each Board be confirmed as Councillor Hugh 
Branney and Councillor Felicity Wilson respectively. 

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 Following a successful Expression of Interest in the Future High Streets Fund 
(FHSF), the Council was informed in July 2019 that its application had been 
selected to go forward into the next phase of assessment and were invited to 
develop a full business case for capital investment by the FHSF in Whitehaven.  

1.2 The development of the Business Case focused on identifying the interventions, 
buildings and schemes that will offer the best opportunity to deliver our vision for 
Whitehaven, as set out in the EOI and to meet the FHSF criteria to renew and 
reshape the town driving growth; improving experience and ensuring future 
sustainability.  The Full Business Case (FBC) holds those interventions within a 
Treasury Green Book business case model, outlining the Strategic, Economic, 
Financial, Commercial and Management cases underpinning our submission.

1.3 The FBC was originally due for submission at the end of May 2020, but due to the 
impact of Covid-19, this was extended to 5th June 2020, with a request for 
additional information on the impact of Covid-19 on the FBC.

1.4 In July 2020, MHCLG wrote to the Council offering both Cleator Moor and Millom 
grants of £500,000 to fund capital projects that can be delivered this financial 
year against the intervention framework as set out in the Towns Fund Further 
Guidance.  The Council was required to confirm how it could spend the grant, 
achieving good value for money within the 2020/21 financial year.

2 DISCUSSION

2.1 The Whitehaven Future High Streets Fund scheme intends to create a more 
cohesive town that utilises King Street and the harbour as a united space and 
reinvents Whitehaven as one of the UK’s premier coastal towns.  As Copeland’s 
principal town Whitehaven has the potential to become an “experience” town on 
the Lake District Coast, for people looking to achieve a work/life balance 
embracing clean energy, modern living, remote research, rural health, great 
leisure cycling opportunities and the outdoor and creative industries.  

2.2 The intention is to bring in more footfall from residents using new services and 
leisure; from workers relocating businesses into the town and from visitors to the 
area that are coming to stay and experience the new opportunities on offer.  This 
builds on the opportunities post Covid including local produce, health and 
wellbeing, rural/coastal housing, quality of life/work balance and the staycation 
market.

Page 152



2.3 The following objectives were agreed as part of the strategic case:
Connecting Whitehaven:
 Objective 1: To visually and physically connect the retail centre and the harbour 

through creating through-routes and new modern arcades by February 2024
 Objective 2: To increase footfall and improve pedestrian flow onto the main 

retail street by March 2024
 Objective 3: To manage traffic flow and prioritise pedestrian access between 

retail and leisure areas, creating safe cycleway connections by March 2024
Diversifying Whitehaven:
 Objective 4: To diversify the town centre by creating a broader mix of uses and 

space for start-ups and investment by December 2023
 Objective 5: To increase the availability of modern living accommodation within 

the town centre, especially for younger generations, by December 2023
 Objective 6: To increase footfall on weekends and evenings through 

developing the leisure and the night time economy by March 2024

2.4 The schemes to support these objectives include improvements to King Street 
public realm; the expansion of the Streetscapes scheme along Strand Street and 
the strengthening of pedestrian links between the harbour and primary retail 
street.  New developments will include renewing a Grade II vacant retail space 
into multi-user digital community hub; the development of a Bike Bank Hub and 
harbourside bike themed café/ restaurant with hotel accommodation and the 
provision of low energy live/ work units for young professionals.  We included two 
additional schemes within our “Do more” option to enhance the harbourside and 
repurpose empty shops on King Street.

2.5 The financial case outlined a total scheme cost for the preferred option of 
£24,575,780, with £1,658,131 already secured and agreed by Council, and further 
external funding applications to FHSF and Sellafield Ltd totalling £22,917,649, 
both of which are in process.  

2.6 Regarding recent Towns Fund accelerated funding, the Council worked with 
partners to agree options against the immediate challenges raised by 
government, including:
 Improvement to or new parks and green spaces and sustainable transport 

links;
 Improvements to town centres including repurposing empty commercial 

properties;
 Demolition or site remediation where this will have an immediate benefit.

2.7 Both towns have identified projects that will address some of the immediate 
challenges under the first theme to improve facilities, green spaces and 
walking/running and cycling trails.  These were submitted to Government in 
August 2020. The Executive on the 25th August considered a detailed report on 
the Towns Fund and this is available via this link as agenda item EXE 143 - 
https://copeland.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=852&Ve
r=4.  As part of the governance arrangements to the Town Fund Boards the 
Council is required to appoint a member to each Board. The second 

Page 153

https://copeland.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=852&Ver=4
https://copeland.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=852&Ver=4


recommendation on this report asks Council to confirm Councillor Hugh Branny as 
the Council’s representative to the Cleator Moor Town Board and Councillor 
Felicity Wilson to the Millom Town Board.

3 CONCLUSIONS

3.1 FHSF offers Whitehaven an exciting opportunity to reinvent itself as one of the 
UK’s premier coastal towns – building on emerging opportunities in the 
“experience economy”.  Whitehaven has the potential in a post Covid landscape 
to become an “experience” town for people looking to achieve a work/life 
balance embracing clean energy, modern living, remote research, rural health, 
great leisure cycling opportunities and the outdoor and creative industries.  

3.2 The grant offer for this financial year to invest in Cleator Moor and Millom offers a 
real opportunity to offset some of the current challenges and provide a 
framework for the development of the emerging Town Investment Plans.

4 STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS 

4.1 The Legal / Monitoring Officer’s comments are:   Receipt of external funding of 
this value is a decision of Council. It is not known at this stage what grant 
conditions will be attached to such funding hence final acceptance being 
delegated to the Chief Executive in consultation with the Mayor and Chair of OSC. 
Spend will be dealt with in accordance with the grant applications submitted and 
the Council’s constitution. Specific legal issues arising from individual projects will 
be dealt with at the appropriate time and particularly in accordance with contract 
standing orders and financial regulations.

4.2 The Section 151 Officer’s comments are:  Specific financial issues arising from 
individual projects will be dealt with at the appropriate time and particularly in 
accordance with contract standing orders and financial regulations. Detailed 
financial monitoring arrangements will be put in place to ensure expenditure is 
managed within budget and to ensure there are no long term financial 
implications for the Council that are not funded.

5.2       EIA Comments:    
Regeneration developments and applications for large grant funding will be 
advised by the Council’s Equality Scheme.  It is anticipated that Equality Impact 
Assessments will be undertaken for each project as part of the business planning 
process.

5.3 Policy Framework:   
The Council’s Corporate Strategy, Growth Strategy and underpinning suite of 
Plans, Policies and Strategies shape our work on the local economy and its impact 
to our residents and our responsibilities and role as a District Council.  The 
Corporate Plan states the Council’s ambition to deliver town centre regeneration 
which is reflected in the existing Economic Development Service Plan.

Page 154



5.4 Consultation:   
The FHSF has been consulting consistently with a range of key stakeholders and 
targeted groups and communities, specifically young people and businesses.  Our 
approach ensures stakeholders are and will be engaged in implementing the final 
scheme agreed with Government.  We have a range of letters of support from key 
stakeholders including members of the Mayors Future Opportunities Group.
Stakeholders have been consulted during the submission of the Town Fund 
checklists and the Council with its partners and Town Deal Boards will continue to 
ensure that our approach and subsequent business cases has engagement and 
consultation throughout.  

6        RESOURCE REQUIREMENTS

6.1 Resources are held within the economic development service budgets.  Where 
resource requirements exceed those already in place, they have been included 
within the grant applications.  Staffing to deliver using these resources is a mix of 
existing staffing and posts funded with the external funding received.  The request 
for additional resource against Whitehaven funding includes programme and 
project management.   We anticipate all these externally funded posts will be 
employed by the Council.

7 HOW WILL THE PROPOSALS BE PROJECT MANAGED AND HOW ARE THE RISKS 
GOING TO BE MANAGED?

7.1 Each project is subject to the Council’s Project and Performance Management 
Framework and will be project managed by the existing Economic Development 
team or by the identified resource that is included in each funding application.  
The existing team are APM qualified and new resource being recruited to deliver 
against programmes will be either qualified or prepared to qualify soon after 
taking up their new post.

7.2 Steering Group meetings are used by Corporate Leadership Team (CLT) to monitor 
progress and address risks and issues as they arise, plus a Risk Register is being 
held against each programme as they are developed and be regularly updated 
throughout, with monitoring reports issued to CLT, the Mayor and his Executive 
and partners and reported to members via the existing performance 
Management Framework and portfolio reports to Full Council.

8 WHAT MEASURABLE OUTCOMES OR OUTPUTS WILL ARISE FROM THIS REPORT?

7.1 The outputs include the creation of new jobs, diversification, new cycleways, 
improved facilities and increased investment in the Borough – all outputs will be 
monitored as part of each individual programme and recorded in Pentana.  

7.2 The outcomes will be monitored within each key programme, with an overarching 
outcome of increased growth; greater diversity within Copeland’s economic base 
and more employment and leisure opportunities for local residents

Page 155



APPENDICES

None.

Page 156



COUNCIL 22/09/20

BUSINESS AND PLANNING ACT 2020: Chief Executive’s Urgent Decision 
 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER:             Cllr Andy Pratt, Environment, Place and Inclusive 
Communities. 

LEAD OFFICER: 
REPORT AUTHOR: 

Pat Graham, Chief Executive 
Michaela Peet, Assistant Solicitor 
 

 
Why has this report come to the Council? 

To advise Council of an urgent action decision taken by the Chief Executive on 24th July 2020 
 
 Recommendation: 
 
  That Council notes the urgent action decision to implement matters arising from the 

Business and Planning Act 2020, which received Royal Assent on the 22nd July 2020 and 
coming into force, in respect of certain provisions, immediately. 

 
 
1. Background information 
 

1.1 An urgent action decision to implement matters arising from the Business and 
Planning Act 2020, which received Royal Assent on the 22nd July 2020 and 
coming into force, in respect of certain provisions, immediately was taken by 
the Chief Executive on the 24th July 2020. 

1.2 The urgent action was needed as the Act received Royal Assent on the 22nd 
July. The matter was considered by the Council’s Executive on the 21st July 
2020. However a late amendment by the Lords on that date switching the 
function of pavement licences from being an executive to a non-executive 
function (such amendment being passed and confirmed by the Commons late 
on the 21st July) means that the Executive decision is of no effect. 
Recommendation (e) of the report to the Executive contemplated this 
happening and stated that the Chief Executive would endorse any decisions 
made by the Executive

1.3 The Act, coming into force, does not coincide with meetings of the Council. The 
Bill went through Parliament as an executive function until the eleventh hour 
when it switched to being a non-executive function. Even if this had not 
happened the speed with which the Bill became law would have meant that 
the Executive decision, even if an executive function, would not have been 

Page 157

Agenda Item 13



timely due to call-in period delays. Unusually, for an Act, many of its provisions 
are with immediate effect. Applications for pavement licences in particular 
could be received tomorrow, consulted upon and processed within 14 days 
otherwise they would be deemed granted. The matter therefore requires an 
immediate decision.

1.4 A copy of the urgent action decision along with the required approvals is 
attached for information and the Council is asked to note the action taken. 
Comments of the statutory officers are included within that action. 

Statutory Officer Comments: 

MO and S151 Comments: Both the Monitoring Officer and Solicitor have agreed the 
action taken.

APPENDICES: 

Appendix A – Copy of Officer Decision Record.    

Page 158



OFFICER DECISION RECORD

Implementation of the Business and Planning Act 2020

Officer:  

Pat Graham, Chief Executive

Service:  

Public Protection

Delegated Power Being Exercised/Subject of Decision:  

To implement matters arising from the Business and Planning Act 2020, which received 
Royal Assent on the 22nd July 2020 and coming into force, in respect of certain provisions, 
immediately.

The matter was considered by the Council’s Executive on the 21st July 2020. However a 
late amendment by the Lords on that date switching the function of pavement licences 
from being an executive to a non-executive function (such amendment being passed and 
confirmed by the Commons late on the 21st July) means that the Executive decision is of 
no effect. Recommendation (e) contemplated this happening and stated that the Chief 
Executive would endorse any decisions made by the Executive.

The decisions being made by this urgent action are therefore:

(a)    that the non-executive function of determining applications for a pavement licence 
in accordance with part 1 of the Business and Planning Act 2020 be delegated to the 
Public Protection Manager, such delegation to include setting up new process and 
determining standard (published) and specific conditions to be attached to a licence and 
duration of licence;

(b)   that no fee should be charged for an application made in respect of a pavement
licence;

(c)   that a review against a refusal of an application by the Public Protection Manager be 
delegated to the Chief Executive in consultation with the Mayor who may then grant the 
application, if appropriate, and subject to such conditions as may be appropriate and for a 
specified duration; and

(d) that enforcement of conditions attached to a pavement licence is delegated to both 
the Public Protection Manager and the Community Services Manager (and in respect of 
the latter, the Council’s Enforcement Officers).

The issues of pavement licences is a new function to the Council and not contemplated by 
the Council’s constitution. The constitution allows the Chief Executive to make a decision 
on behalf of Council where it is outside policy/approved budgets, it is not practical to 

Page 159



convene a quorate meeting of Council and the Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee agrees the matter is urgent.

Background information:  

The report to the Executive contains a full background and is available via this link – 
https://copeland.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s9734/Business%20and%20Planning%20B
ill%20-final.pdf 

Decision on urgency:

The Act, coming into force, does not coincide with meetings of the Council. The Bill went 
through Parliament as an executive function until the eleventh hour when it switched to 
being a non-executive function. Even if this had not happened the speed with which the 
Bill became law would have meant that the Executive decision, even if an executive 
function, would not have been timely due to call-in period delays. Unusually, for an Act, 
many of its provisions are with immediate effect. Applications for pavement licences in 
particular could be received tomorrow, consulted upon and processed within 14 days 
otherwise they would be deemed granted. The matter therefore requires an immediate 
decision.

In view of the above I agree that the decision is urgent.

Authorised by email below dated 23rd July 2020 from Councillor John Kane, Chair, 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee:

From: Cllr John Kane <John.Kane@copeland.gov.uk> 
Sent: 23 July 2020 15:16
To: Clinton Boyce <Clinton.Boyce@copeland.gov.uk>
Subject: Re: Urgent: Business and Planning Act 2020

Clinton,

Thanks for clarifying, so yes you can now proceed.

John 

Sent from my iPad

Others consulted:

Monitoring Officer: Agrees with proposal.
Solicitor:  Agrees with proposal.

Page 160

https://copeland.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s9734/Business%20and%20Planning%20Bill%20-final.pdf
https://copeland.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s9734/Business%20and%20Planning%20Bill%20-final.pdf


Decision to be taken:

As set out in (a) to (d) above/below.

Reasons for the decision (specify all reasons for taking the decisions including where 
necessary reference to Council policy):

It is necessary for the proper implementation of the Business and Planning Act 2020.

Alternative options considered (if appropriate)

None.

Whether any conflict of interest arose whether of the decision maker or any consultee 
in the decision and if any was declared whether the head of paid service granted a 
dispensation:

None.

Background/Reports/Information considered and attached (legal, personnel, financial 
implications, etc.)

Report to Executive - 
https://copeland.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s9734/Business%20and%20Planning%20B
ill%20-final.pdf 

The Act itself - https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2020/16/contents/enacted 

Approval

I agree, and now make the following decisions:

(a)    that the non-executive function of determining applications for a pavement licence 
in accordance with part 1 of the Business and Planning Act 2020 be delegated to the 
Public Protection Manager, such delegation to include setting up new process and 
determining standard (published) and specific conditions to be attached to a licence and 
duration of licence;

(b)   that no fee should be charged for an application made in respect of a pavement

Page 161

https://copeland.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s9734/Business%20and%20Planning%20Bill%20-final.pdf
https://copeland.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s9734/Business%20and%20Planning%20Bill%20-final.pdf
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2020/16/contents/enacted


licence;

(c)   that a review against a refusal of an application by the Public Protection Manager be 
delegated to the Chief Executive in consultation with the Mayor who may then grant the 
application, if appropriate, and subject to such conditions as may be appropriate and for a 
specified duration; and

(d) that enforcement of conditions attached to a pavement licence is delegated to both 
the Public Protection Manager and the Community Services Manager (and in respect of 
the latter, the Council’s Enforcement Officers).
 
Authorised by email below dated 24th July 2020 from Pat Graham, Chief Executive:

From: Pat Graham <Pat.Graham@copeland.gov.uk> 
Sent: 24 July 2020 08:51
To: Clinton Boyce <Clinton.Boyce@copeland.gov.uk>
Subject: RE: Business and Planning Act 2020

Thank you Clinton I am happy to authorise the delegated decision as attached

Pat

Page 162


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Annual General meeting held on 21 May 2020 and the Extra-Ordinary meetings held on 21 May 2020, 14 July 2020 and 8 September 2020
	$$Minutes EGM 210520
	$$Minutes EGM 140720
	$$Minutes EGM1 080920

	8 Mayor's Executive Report
	9 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Report
	Appendix A - Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2019-20

	10 Outside Bodies Annual Report
	Cllr Calvin
	Cllr Dave Banks - Risks & Hazard Reduction WG
	Cllr Fee Wilson Community Fund
	Cllr Fee Wilson Safeguarding
	Cllr Gemma Dinsdale LLWR
	Cllr Gemma Dinsdale PCC
	Cllr Jackie Bowman
	Cllr Linda Jones-Bulman
	Cllr McVeigh Alliance
	Cllr McVeigh Cumbria Housing Group
	Cllr Moore Copeland Community Fund
	Cllr Moore North West Employers
	Cllr Moore NuLeaF
	Cllr R Studholme Spent Fuel WG
	Cllr Russell Studholme
	Cllr Weir
	Mayor Starkie BEC Board
	Mayor Starkie Copeland Community Fund Board
	Mayor Starkie Copeland Partnership
	Mayor Starkie Cumbria Leadership Board
	Mayor Starkie Cumbria LEP Board
	Mayor Starkie Joint Districts
	Mayor Starkie WCH Stakeholder Group
	Mayor Starkie WCSSG
	Cllr Carl Walmsley
	Cllr Doug Wilson Complete. 21-06-20
	Cllr Jeffrey Hailes
	Cllr Linda Jones-Bulman 2
	Cllr Sam Pollen
	Cllr Weir 2
	Appendix C - Agreed Outside Bodies List 2019-20

	11 Outside Bodies Amendments
	Outside Bodies 2020 updated Sept 2020

	12 Update on Copeland Borough Council's Town Centres Programme - The Government's Future High Streets Fund Opportunity for Whitehaven and Towns Fund Opportunities for Cleator Moor and Millom
	13 Business and Planning Act 2020: Chief Executive's Urgent Decision
	Officer decision record - Chief Executive -Business and Planning Act 2020


